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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DtVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

Lori A. SfeiWoeft* 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
CommteioiKr 603-271-9544 1-800-052-3345 Ext. 9544

P**' 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.ob.eov
Ketjs S. Fox *
Director

June 13, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (Vendor#: 177575-8001) for the provision of
Care Management Entity services and Enhanced Care Coordination through the Families and
Systems Together Forward program, by increasing the total price limitation by $900,000 from
$4,752,160 to $5,652,160 with no change to the contract completion dates of June 30, 2023,
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 16% Federal Funds. 84% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017, item
#398, amended on September 20, 2018, item #20, amended on June 10. 2020, item #11, and
most recently amended on June 2, 2021, item #31.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is bolster the care through Care Management Entity sen/ices
by adding supports for Enhanced Care Coordination to serve families with youth ages zero (0)
through six (6) who have serious emotional disturbance and a history of high utilization of
behavioral health services, the integration of Enhanced Care Coordination into the existing Care
Management Entity services will allow for care to be administered to children, youth, and young
adults zero (0) through twenty-one (21). The services provided include;

•  Provision of Individual Service Options (ISO) in-home services.

• Wraparound Coordination.

• Wraparound Coordinator training and coaching.

• Wraparound team meeting attendance.

•  Youth peer support.

•  Family peer support.

•  Determination of needed customizable goods and services for the children/youth receiving
services and their families.

•  Provision of stipends for customizable goods and services, and other non-Medicaid
billable senrices.

Approximately 1000 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023.
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Qualifying children and youth are Medicaid eligible, aged zero (0) through twenty-one (21),
experiencing difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of severe emotional disturbance
(SED), and at risk of multi-agency Involvement Through FAST Fonward, Transitional Residential
Enhance Care Coordination, and the Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination these
children, youth, and their families can be served in their home communities, and attending their
community's school program. Outcomes of a high fidelity Wraparound program include: increased
positive social, academic, and behavioral outcomes, increase early identification and
interventions, and community connectedness for children, youth, and families; decreased out of
home, school, and community placements (and duration of such); increased caregiver
capacity/decreased caregiver strain; and access to programs and supports that are uniquely
tailored to each child and family's culture, strengths, and goals. This is a unique program in New
Hampshire to service the described population in this manner.

The Department will monitor services using the following performance measures:

•  95% of children, youth and young adults and their families receive the Child and
Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) assessment tool, which is used with psychiatric
oversight and FAST Fonward engagements.

•  60% of children, youth and young adults and their families are assessed using the Youth
Progress Scale (VPS) and Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS) assessment tools.

•  100% of children, youth and young adults and their families receive completed plans of
care in FAST Forward, Transitional Residential Enhance Care Coordination, and the Early
Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination.

•  95% of child, youth and young adults and their families are assessed using the Child Well-
Belng Scale while enrolled in the Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination program.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the contract agreement, the parties have the option to
extend the agreements for up three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery
of services, available funding, agreement of the parlies and Governor and Council approval.
The Department is not exercising Its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families with
children and youth who have serious emotional disturbances may have fewer services available
to them in their communities to meet the challenges presented by mental illness. Further, the
Department may be out of compliance with RSA 135:F. RSA 135; F Is statutorily in effect to
increase service effectiveness and improve outcomes for children with behavioral health
challenges and their caretakers, reduce the cost of providing services by leveraging funding
sources other than general funds, reducing the need for costly out-of-home placements, and
reducing duplication across agencies, and coordinate care for children Involved in multiple
systems and children at risk of court Involvement and out-of-home placement.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Service*' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-92-921010-2053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR
CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM OF CARE

100% General Funds

Vendor Name: NFI North, Inc Vendor# 177575-B001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2018 072-509073 Contracts for Program Services 92102100 $6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $91,160.00 $0.00 $91,160.00
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $420,000.00 $0.00 $420,000.00
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $785,000.00 $0.00 $785,000.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $1,150,000.00 $0.00 $1,150,000.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $1,150,000.00 $0.00 $1,150,000.00
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $1,150,000.00 $0.00 $1,150,000.00

Sub Total $4,752,160.00 $0.00 $4,752,160.00

Overall Total 2053 $4,752,160.00 $0.00 $4,752,160.00

05-095-094-940010.24650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL,
NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ARPA DHHS FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS

100% Other Funds (ARPA)

Vendor Name: NFI North, Inc Vendor# 177575-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 00FRF602PH9511A $0.00 $128,500.00 $128,500.00
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 00FRF602PH9511A $0.00 $771,500.00 $771,500.00

Sub Total $0,00 $900,000.00 $900,000.00

Sub Total $0,00! $900,000.00! $900,000^

Overall Total 2465 $0.00 $900,000.00 $900,000.00

TOTAL $4,752,160.00 $900,000.00 $5,652,160.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail
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DocuSign Envelope ID; EAFD6363-7240-492E-8E0F-F496EF097354

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Care Management Entity Services for FAST Fon/vard contract is by and between
the State of .New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
NFI North, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #39B), as amended on September 20, 2018 (Item #20), as amended on June 10,
2020, (Item #11), and as amended June 2, 2021 (Item #31). the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation or modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,652,160

2. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #2, Scope of Sen/ices by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A
Amendment #4, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment by replacing in
its entirety with Exhibit B Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which
is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2 by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-5 Amendment #4,
which attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 SFY 2022 Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit 8-6
Amendment #4 SFY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3 SFY 2023 Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-7
Amendment #4 SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

7. Modify Standard Exhibits D-H by replacing in its entirety with Standard Exhibit D,
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS, through
Standard Exhibit H, CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE,
which are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Modify Standard Exhibit J by replacing in its entirety with Standard Exhibits J, CERTIFICATION
REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT

(FFATA) COMPLIANCE, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

fU)
NFI North, Inc. Contractor Initials

6/9/2022
RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-01-Ap4 Page 1 of 3 Date _____
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

6/11/2022

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

—DocuSlgned by:

UAfl. S-
— EOeC»05B04Ce3442...

Name: Katja s. fox

Title: Di rector

6/9/2022

Date

NFI North, Inc.
—OocuSign«<l by:

pAuL fU)
■ gBBtt42M^EFUflP

Name: l. oann, phD
Title: Executive Director

NFI North. Inc.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-01-A04

A-S-1,2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSignod by:CDocuSlgnod by:
74B734S44S414B0...

Date Name: Guan'no
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NFI North. Inc. A-S-1.2

RFP-2018-DBH-02.CAREM-01-A04 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. el seq.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure that all services provided to children, youth, and
families are in accordance with the core values of family and youth driven,
culturally and linguistically competent, and community based.

1.3. The Contractor must provide Care Management Entity services, statewide, for
families with children, youth or young adults ages five (5) through age twenty-
one (21) years who have Severe Emotional Disturbances (SED) and who are
enrolled in the FAST Forward program as required by NH RSA 135-F;4, Duties
of Commissioner of the Department of Health & Human Services
(http://gencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/x/135-f/135-f-mrg.htm)

1.4. The Contractor must provide Enhanced Care Coordination (ECC) to children
ages zero (0) through age six (6) and their families, caregivers in congruence
with the Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health Program to address age-
specific mental and behavioral health needs of at-risk young children and their
caregivers.

1.5. The Contractor shall work with service providers that provide support for
children, youth, young adults and their families, when applicable, including, but
not limited to:

1.5.1. Community Mental Health Centers contracted with the Department.

1.5.2. Peer Support Agencies.

1.5.3. School districts.

1.5.4. Family resource centers.

1.5.5. Pre-schools.

1.5.6. Day care centers.

1.5.7. Family Centered Early Supports and Services agencies.

1.5.8. Other Care Management entities contracted with DHHS.

1.6. The Contractor shall comply with all provisions listed in this contract as well as
all applicable Department policies and procedures, including the Care
Management Entity Program, Policy and Practice Manual as provided by the
Department.

1.7. The Contractor shall have a data system that meets the federal requirements of
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and has the
ability to bill Medicaid.

1.8. FAST Forward Program

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials

6/9/2022
RFA-2020-D8H-02-CAREM.01-A04 Page 1 of 15 Date _____
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

1.8.1. The Contractor shall provide Care Management Entity services, statewide,
for children, youth, and young adults ages five (5) to twenty-one (21) with
Severe Emotional Disturbances (SED) and their families who meet
eligibility criteria for, or are enrolled in, the FAST Fonward program, in
accordance with the Department's FAST Fonward Program Policy and
Practice Manual, as provided by the Department, and as required by NH
RSA 135-F;4, Duties of Commissioner of the Department of Health &
Human Services.

1.8.2. The Cqntractor shall provide services that include, but are not limited to:

1.8.2.1. Family and youth peer support services.

1.8.2.2. Provision of customized goods and services.

1.8.2.3. Individual Service Options (ISO) in-home services.

1.8.2.4. Wraparound services provided through Wraparound Coordinators in
accordance with the NH Wraparound Model and System of Care
core values, which include:

1.8.2.4.1. Being family- driven and youth-driven.

1.8.2.4.2. Coordinating community-based services.

1.8.2.4.3. Being culturally and linguistically competent.

1.8.2.4.4. Providing trauma-informed care.

1.8.3. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with other Care Management
Entity contracted with the Department to maintain continuity of care for
children, youth and young adults and their families, in areas regarding:

1.8.3.1. Regional coverage of FAST Forward services.

1.8.3.2. Instances of the child, youth, or young adult and the family relocating
to another covered region.

1.8.3.3. Instances of acute psychiatric hospitalization becoming a medical
necessity for a child, youth, or young adult.

1.8.3.4. Instances of a system level collaboration being necessary due to a
child, youth, or young adult experiencing high-risk needs.

1.8.4. The Contractor shall provide Intensive In-Home services which may
include Individual Services Options (ISO) in-home services, in accordance
with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-C 6339, which include, but
are not limited to:

1.8.4.1. Crisis support.

1.8.4.2. Intensive behavioral supports

1.8.4.3. Planned and emergency respite.

PUJ
NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

1.8.5. The Contractor shall administer evaluation tools to conduct assessments,

as required by the Department, which include, but are not limited to:

1.8.5.1. The Youth Progress Rating Scale (VPS), also known as outcome
rating scale (ORS), which is a quantitative youth and family self-
report survey. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.8.5.1.1. The assessment is conducted or facilitated by the
CME's FAST Forward Coordinator.

1.8.5.1.2. A copy of the responses are maintained in the family's
case record.

,  1.8.5.1.3. The original responses are forwarded to the FAST
Fonward Program Manager.

1.8.5.2. The Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS), which is a survey of the
family and youth administered at the conclusion of each
Wraparound Team Meeting. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.8.5.2.1. Responses are reviewed by the FAST Forward
Coordinator.

1.8.5.2.2. A copy of the responses are maintained in the family's
case record.

1.8.5.2.3. The original responses are stored to be reviewed by
the Department's to FAST Forward Program Manager.

1.8.5.3. The Children and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) tool,
which shall be completed and reviewed upon beginning services
and at a minimum of every three (3) months to measure the
child, youth, or young adult and family's needs and strengths. The
Contractor shall:

1.8.5.3.1. Complete the CANS assessmerit when it is not
completed by the child, youth, or young adult's
clinician.

1.8.5.3.2. Ensure a copy of the assessment is maintained in the
family's case record.

1.8.5.3.3. Provide the original assessment to the Department's
FAST Forward Program Manager.

1.8.6. The Contractor shall ensure case documents are available to the

Department to allow the FAST Forward Program Manager to complete
a Document Review Measure (DRM), which is a review of case fill
content.

1.9. Residential Treatment Oversight
OS

FlM
NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials

6/9/2022
RFA.2020-OBH.02-CAREM-01-A04 Page 3 of 15 Date ____
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

1.9.1. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment oversight, as directed by
the Department, to provide continuity of care for children, youth and young
adults who require residential treatment to ensure successful and timely
transitions.

1.9.2. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Department and other
Care Management Entities contracted by the Department to maintain
continuity of care for children, youth, and young adults who require
residential treatment and to ensure statewide coverage, and in areas
regarding;

1.9.2.1. Regional coverage of FAST Forward services.

1.9.2.2. Instances of child, youth, or young adult and family relocations into
another covered region.

1.9.2.3. Instances of children, youths, or young adults meeting medical
necessity for acute psychiatric hospitalization.

1.9.2.4. Instances of children, youths, or young adults experiencing high-risk
needs that require a system level collaboration.

1.9.3. The Contractor shall ensure the ability to provide residential treatment
oversight within ninety (90) days of the contract effective date to:

1.9.3.1. Assist the child, youth, or young adult with minimizing the length of
stay in the residential treatment facility.

1.9.3.2. Ensure successful transitions back to the community.

1.9.4. The Contractor shall accept referrals for residential treatment oversight
services, upon Department approval, from:

1.9.4.1. Hospitals.

1.9.4.2. Managed Care Organizations (MCO)..

1.9.4.3. Other behavioral health providers.

1.9.5. The Contractor shall ensure residential treatment oversight services
include, but are not limited to:

1.9.5.1. Discharge and transition planning is realistic and meets the needs of
the child, youth, or young adult and their family.

1.9.5.2. Ensuring family and youth voice and choice is central during
treatment.

1.9.5.3. Ensuring treatment plans are relevant to the issue that led to the
individual needing residential treatment services.

1.9.5.4. Ensuring discharge plans are reflective of the appropriate level of
care for the child, youth, or young adult; are realistic; and are
achievable. c "

PlD
NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor initials ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

1.9.5.5. Attending all pertinent treatment team meetings at the residential
treatment facility and advocating for the child, youth, or young adult
and their family.

1.9.5.6. Providing coordination for any referrals for services that will be
needed to support the transition of the child, youth, or young adult
from a residential treatment back to the family home.

1.9.5.7. Referring the family to supportive services in their communities,
which may include but are not limited to family peer support groups.

1.9.5.8. Assisting the family with applying for Medicaid coverage, as
applicable and needed.

1.9.5.9. Providing documentation, if applicable, for the child, youth, or young
adult who has court-involvement, in accordance with NH Revised
Statutes Annotated (RSA) 169-6:19 or RSA 169-D:19.

1.9.5.10. Ensuring the treatment recommendations are attainable within the
community and the home setting by the caregiver If discharging a
child, youth, or young adult to the home or community based
placement.

1.9.6. For any child, youth, or young adult who has an open Division for Children,
Youth, and Families (DCYF) case (Child Protective Services (CPS) or
Juvenile Justice System (JJS) and is involved in the court system, and is
enrolled in the CME or FAST Forward by the Contractor, the Contractor
shall:

1.9.6.1. Provide results of the Children and Adolescent Needs and Strengths
(CANS) assessment and the Plan of Care (POC) to the court.

1.9.6.2. Provide any recommendation for treatment and supportive services
that will benefit the child, youth or young adult to the court.

1.9.6.3. Provide progress reports to the court in accordance with court
hearings for each child, youth and young adult.

1.9.7. The Contractor shall ensure all reports and plans of care submitted for
court review are:

1.9.7.1. Submitted in accordance with RSA 169-8 5a, RSA 169-C 12-b and
RSA 169-D4-a, with copies forwarded to the assigned Child
Protective Service Worker and all other appropriate parties.

1.9.7.2. Clear, understandable and free of jargon.

1.9.8. The Contractor shall work with the Department and other stakeholders to:

1.9.8.1. Develop outcome measures for children, youth and young adults
who utilize residential treatment.

,  ?
NFI North, Ir^c. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

1.9.8.2. Incorporate the outcome measures into the Contractor's evaluation
plan of targeted residential treatment levels of care.

1.10. Psychiatric Hospltalization Oversight

1.10.1. The Contractor shall provide psychiatric hospitalization oversight for
children, youth and young adults admitted to an acute psychiatric hospital
who need assistance to successfully transition to a family home or
residential care in a timely manner, as defined by the family and by medical
necessity.

1.10.2. The Contractor shall provide psychiatric hospitalization oversight services
to ensure fan;i.ily and youth voice and choice are present during treatments
and that treatments are relevant to the issue that led to the hospitalization.
The Contractor shall;

1.10.2.1. Attend all treatment team meetings at the hospital in which the child
or youth is receiving services.

1.10.2.2. Ensure discharge and transition planning is realistic and meets the
needs of the family.

1.10.2.3. Ensuring treatment recommendations are attainable within the
community and the home, if discharging to the home.

1.10.2.4. Ensure discharge plans reflect the appropriate level of care

1.10.2.5. Coordinate referrals for services and supports needed to support the
individual's transitions

1.10.3. The Contractor shall prioritize oversight for children, youth and young
adults who:

1.10.3.1. Do not achieve the goal of timely discharge or transition based upon
clinical necessity.

1.10.3.2. Have rapid or chronic re-admissions that do not go beyond clinical
necessity but are frequent in nature.

1.10.4. The Contractor shall work with the Department and hospital to assess
instances where the child, youth or young adult may benefit from oversight,
but may not meet the criteria as stated in Paragraph 1.10.3, which may
include but are not limited to:

1.10.4.1. Involuntary versus voluntary hospitalization.

1.10.4.2. Multi-system involvement.

1.10.5. The Contractor shall ensure the ability to provide psychiatric hospitalization
oversight no later than ninety (90) days from the contract effective date in
order to:

of1.10.5.1. Assist the child, youth, or young adult with minimizing the
stay in the psychiatric hospital.

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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DocuSign Envelope ID; EAFD6363-724CM92E-8E0F-F496EF097354

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment #4

1.10.5.2. Ensure successful transitions to residential treatment facilities or

back to the communities.

1:10.6. The Contractor shall accept referrals from the other Care Management
Entity (CME) for psychiatric hospilalization oversight services, when the
other CME has a conflict, or in instances when continuity of care will take
priority.

1.10.7. The Contractor shall ensure that psychiatric oversight services include, but
are not limited to:

1.10.7.1. Discharge and transition planning that is realistic and meets the need
of the child, youth, or young adult and their family.

1.10.7.2. Ensuring the child, youth, or young adult and their family's voice and
choice is present during treatment.

1.10.7.3. Ensuring treatment plans are relevant to the issue that led to the
hospitalization.

1.10.7.4. Ensuring discharge plans reflect the appropriate level of care; are
realistic; and are achievable.

1.10.7.5. Ensuring that the child, youth, or young adult is assessed for the
need of residential treatment, when indicated!

1.10.7.6. Assisting the hospital with referrals to an assessor for residential
treatment if necessary.

1.10.7.7. Ensuring treatment recommendations are attainable within the
community and the home when discharging to the home.

1.10.7.8. Attending all treatment team meetings at the hospital and advocating
for the child, youth or young adult and their family's needs.

1.10.7.9. Providing support and coordinating referrals for services and
supports needed for transitioning the child, youth or young adult.

1.10.7.10.Connecting the family to supportive services in the community, which
may include, but is not limited to family peer support groups.

1.10.7.11 .Assisting the family with applying for Medicaid coverage, as
applicable and needed.

1.11. Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination

1.11.1. The Contractor shall provide Care Management Entity services for young
children (ages 0-6), with Severe Emotional Disturbances (SED) or at-risk
for SED, who meet eligibility criteria for, or are enrolled in, the Early
Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination, and their families, statewide, in
accordance with the Department's CME Program Policy and Practice
Manual, as provided by the Department and as it may be amended.

ii)
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1.11.2. The Contractor shall provide Enhanced Care Coordination services that
adhere to System of Care core values, which include:

1.11.2.1. Being family-driven and youth-driven.

1.11.2.2. Coordinating community-based services.

1.11.2.3. Being culturally and linguistically competent.

1.11.2.4. Providing trauma-informed care.

1.11.3. The Contractor shall provide Enhanced Care Coordination services
through Wraparound Coordinators in accordance with the NH Wraparound
Model and use elements of NH Wraparound model to address the
following, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.11.3.1. Access to treatment.

1.11.3.2. Social Determinants of Health (SDOH).

1.11.3.3. Other support needs, including but not limited to:

1.11.3.3.1 .Transportation.

1.11.3.3.2. Quality childcare.

1.11.3.3.3. Accessing treatment for the caregiver as indicated.

1.11.4. The Contractor shall provide referral pathways to Department-approved
services and treatment options to improve the child-caregiver relationship
using evidence-based treatment options or other Department-approved
models to address the child's treatment needs and relationship work
between infant/child and caregiver when necessary and appropriate, which
include but are not limited to:

1.11.4.1. Child-Parent Psychotherapy treatment.

1.11.4.2. Home visiting services.

1.11.4.3. Healthy Families America.

1.11.4.4. Nurturing Parent.

1.11.5. When indicated by the Plan of Care and approved by the Department, the
Contractor shall provide referrals to services, including , but not limited to:

1.11.5.1. Family peer support services.

1.11.5.2. Youth peer support services.

1.11.5.3. Customizable goods and services.

1.11.6. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with other Care Management
Entities contracted with the Department to maintain continuity of care for
children, as well as their caregivers, in areas regarding:

X—DS
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1.11.6.1. Regional coverage of Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination
services.

1.11.6.2. Instances of the young child, child, youth, or young adult and the
family relocation to another covered region.

1.11.6.3. Instances of a system level collaboration being necessary due to a
child experiencing high-risk needs.

1.11.7. The Contractor shall administer evaluation tools to conduct assessments

as required by the Department, which include, but are not limited to:

1.11.7.1. Child Well-Being Scale, an index scale that informs needs and
outcomes.

1.11.7.2. World Health Organization - Five Well-Being Index (WHO-5).

1.11.7.3. Child Adolescent,Needs and Strengths (CANS) tool, which shall be
completed and reviewed upon beginning services and at a minimum
of every three (3) months to measure the progress of the young child,
child, youth or young adult and assess family's needs and strengths.
The Contractor shall:

1.11.7.3.1. Complete the CANS assessment when it is not
completed by the child's support team;

1.11.7.3.2. Ensure a copy of the assessment is maintained in the
family's case record.

1.11.7.3.3. Provide the original baseline assessment to the
Individuals that will utilize information for outcome

measurement and/or case planning.

1.11.7.3.4. Complete the Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS),
which is a survey of the family and youth administered
at the conclusion of each Wraparound Team Meeting.

1.11.7.3.5. Ensure case documents are available to the provider's
program managers in order to complete a Document
Review Measure (DRM), a fidelity tool referenced in
the CME Program, Policy and Practice Manual.

1.11.8. The Contractor shall provide training and coaching support, as required by
the Department to ensure the practice is:

1.11.8.1. Continually improved;

1.11.8.2. Consistent;

1.11.8.3. Maintaining fidelity to the program;

1.11.8.4. Providing better outcomes for families; and

1.11.8.5. Optimizing workforce capacity.

:
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1.11.9. The Contractor shall provide training and/or support to the following
evidence based practices or tools to be used statewide, including but not
limited to:

1.11.9.1. Qualified clinicians in using the Diagnostic Classification of Mental
Health and Developmental Disorders of Infancy and Early Childhood
manual (DC 0-5 manual).

1.11.9.2. Providing a "Training of Trainers" for the DC 0-5 manual.

1.11.9.3. NH Wraparound.

1.11.9.4. Administration of the evaluation tools required.

1.11.10.The Contractor shall support the development of Child-Parent
Psychotherapy (CPP) statewide to include providing CPP training and
support to qualified clinicians.

1.12. Evaluation and Site Review

1.12.1. The Contractor shall develop an evaluation team that provides assistance
with:

1.12.1.1. Obtaining data from any contracted care management entity.

1.12.1.2. Understanding and sharing evaluative data with the Department and
any other care management entity of children, youth and young
adults and their families who are served within the System of Care in
order to enhance the ability to communicate outcomes to the
Department and other System of Care stakeholders in alignment with
RSA 135:F, System of Care for Children's Mental Health.

1.12.2. The Contractor shall ensure the evaluation team provides information that
includes, but is not limited to:

1.12.2.1. Evaluative program outcomes and de-identified and aggregate
client- level data from sources referenced by the Department.

1.12.2.2. Outcome and de-identified, aggregate client-level data for
Department use, which may include but is not limited to:

1.12.2.2.1. Service Utilization Data.

1.12.2.2.2. Number of youth remaining in the community
compared to the number of youth needing to access
residential treatment.

1.12.2.2.3. Length of stay in residential treatment outcomes and
reporting

1.12.3. The Contractor shall provide a leadership team with a minimum of three
(3) members who shall participates in the Department's annual site review
process, which includes, but is not limited to: .—os

?\j)
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1.12.3.1. Reviewing program services for twenty percent (20%) of participants
served annually for compliance with all items outlined in the
agreement, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.12.3.1.1. Eligibility and re-eligibility assessments.

1.12.3.1.2. Plan of care.

1.12.3.1.3. Person Centered Planning practices.

1.12.3.1.4. Conflict of interest issues.

1.12.3.1.5.Setting requirements.

1.12.3.1.6. Provider qualifications.

1.12.3.2. Collaborating with the Department to address areas that requirement
improvement as identified during the site review, which includes, but
is not limited to, creating a plan that outlines the activities for
improvement no more than thirty (30) days after the site review.

1.12.3.3. Collaborating with the Department to implement the plan for
improvement in subparagraph 1.12.3.2., and reporting on all related
activities until evidence of improvement is achieved.

1.12.3.4. Providing review of documentation and outcome data.

1.12.3.5. Conducting anonymous survey questionnaires for children, youth
and young adults as well as their families.

1.12.3.6. Providing the results of the survey questionnaires to the Department.

1.12.3.7. Facilitating interviews with entities who may include, but are not
limited to:

1.12.3.7.1.Children, youth and young adults as well as their
families.

1.12.3.7.2. Wraparound Coordinators.

1.12.3.7.3. Sub-contractors and stakeholders.

1.12.3.7.4. Program Director.

2. Reporting

2,1.The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on program services provided,
ensuring data is de-identified and in the aggregate, including but not limited to:

2.1.1. Census data.

2.1.2. Provisions of services or service utilization data.

2.1.3. Number of individuals admitted to residential treatment services.

2.1.4. Discharge numbers.

2.1.5. Discharge reasons. | pj
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2.1.6. Patient residential zip code.

2.1.7. Demographics of individuals served including, but not limited to:

2.1.8. Gender.

2.1.9. Age.

2.2.The Contractor shall ensure the Evaluation Team as outlined in Paragraph 1.12,
submits quarterly reports and presents virtually or in-person to the Department on
the following:

2.2.1. Evaluative program outcomes.

2.2.2. De-identified and aggregate client-level data from sources referenced from
the Department.

2.2.3. Outcome and de-identified, aggregate client-level data for Department
purposes, including but not limited to:

2.2.3.1. Service Utilization Data.

2.2.3.2. Acute Psychiatric Hospitalization reports.

2.2.3.3. Number of youth remaining in community comparatively to the
number of youth needing to access residential treatment.

2.2.4. Gap analysis.

3. Performance Measures

3.1.The Contractor shall ensure:

3.1.1. The CANS assessment tool is used with -psychiatric and residential
oversight, FAST Forward, and Early Childhood Enhanced Care
Coordination engagements with 95% of engaged children, youth and young
adults as well as their families.

3.1.2. The Child Well-being Scale is used with 95% of families engaged in Early
Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination.

3.1.3. The the Youth Progress Scale (VPS) and Team Meeting Rating Scale
(TMRS) assessment tools are utilized with 80% of engaged
children/youth/young adults and their families.

3.1.4. FAST Forward plans of care are completed with 100% of engaged children,
youth and young adults as well as their families.

4. Exhibits Incorporated

4.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 184) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996,

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #4 Contractor Initials ^
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accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

4.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

■  PO?
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5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities shall comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals
such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department
with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations
that the Department may request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for sei^ices
hereunder, as well as individuals declared ineligible have a ^
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fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be
permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in
accordance with Department regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to;

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and. which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit B Amendment #2, Scope
of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by:

2.1. 84% General funds.

2.2. 16% AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) AS AWARDED FROM THE
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE FOR EMERGENCY RELIEF AND RECOVERY

(GOFERR), ARP FRF funds under Section 602 (c)(1)(A).

3. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for FAST Forward Program services
provided to individuals pursuant to this Agreement as follows :

3.1. The Contractor shall first bill the clients' other insurance or payor sources.

3.2. For Medicaid enrolled individuals, the Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on

the Fee for Service (FFS) schedule for the following services, with prior
authorization from the Department:

3.2.1. Community-based wrap-around services.

3.2.2. Family peer support, self-help/peer services

3.2.3. Youth peer support, self-help, peer services.

3.2.4. Mental health services not otherwise specified.

3.2.5. Respite care-In the home.

3.2.6. Respite care, not in the home, foster care, child, non-theraoeutic.

3.2.7. Respite care, not in the home, foster care, therapeutic, child,

3.2.8. Respite care, not in the home, group home, child, per diem.

3.3. The Department will approve the use of the necessary ISO code(s) for Medicaid
billing.

3.4. The Contractor agrees that provided services will be billed to Medicaid following
the codes and fee schedule set forth by the Department.

3.5. For FAST Forward Program services provided to individuals that are not billable to
other insurance or payors, or Medicaid, the Contractor shall bill using the budget
line item listed as Billing for Uninsured as specified in Exhibit B-6 SFY 2022
Budget, Amendment #4 and Exhibit B-7 SFY 2023 Budget, Amendment #4 as
follows:

3.5.1. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed up to the current Medicaid rate for
the Medicaid eligible services provided. The current Medicaid rate will be paid
in accordance with the current, publically posted Children's Mental Health
HCBC Medicaid Rate Schedule.

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Amendmenl #4 Contractor initials
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3.5.2. The Contractor's billings to the Department shall be made monthly and are
not to exceed the Billing for Uninsured line item as specified in Exhibit B-6
SFY 2022 Budget, Amendment #4 and Exhibit B-7 SPY 2023 Budget,
Amendment #4.

3 6. For the budget lines item listed as Billing for Uninsured as specified in Exhibit B-6
SFY 2022 Budget, Amendment #4, Exhibit B-8 Amendment #4 and Exhibit B-7
SFY 2023 Budget, Amendment #4 the Contractor shall bill and' seek
reimbursement for services provided to individuals pursuant to this Agreement as
follows:

3.6.1. For Psychiatric Oversight services, the Contractor shall be paid a daily rate
of $70.00 per day up to a five day maximum per hospitalization billable for the
length of enrollment.

3.6.2. For Residential Oversight services, the Contractor shall be paid a daily rate
of $70.00 per day up to a three day maximum per week for the length of
enrollment.

3.6.3. For Early Childhood Enhanced Care Coordination services, the Contractor
shall be paid a daily rate of $70.00 per day up to a three day maximum per
week for the length of enrollment.

3-7. The Contractor's biljings to the Department shall be made monthly and are not to
exceed the Billing-for Uninsured line item as specified in Exhibit B-6 SFY 2022
Budget, Amendment #4, Exhibit 8-8 Amendment #4 and Exhibit B-7 SFY 2023
Budget, Amendment #4.

4. Except for the budget lines item listed as Billing for Uninsured as specified Exhibit B-6
SFY 2022 Budget, Amendment #4, Exhibit B-8 Amendment #4 and Exhibit B-7 SFY
2023 Budget, Amendment #4shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, which shall not exceed the
approved line items specified in Exhibit B-6 SFY 2022 Budget, Amendment #4, Exhibit
B-8 Amendment #4 and Exhibit 8-7 SFY 2023 Budget, Amendment #4. Invoicing for
these line items of the approved budget shall be net any other revenue received towards
the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the ten
(iOth) day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the
invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment.

5.1. Backup documentation shall include, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.2. The following backup documentation may also be requested as needed:

5.2.1. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.2.2. Cost center reports

NFI North. Inc. Exhibit B Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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5.2.3. Profit and loss report

5.2.4. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available
upon request.

5.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available.

5.4. The Contractor shall keep detailed recordsof their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review,
as requested.

5.5. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Tanja.Godtfredsen@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports, documentation, or
budgets as identified in Exhibit A Amendment #2, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit
B Amendment #2 Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

9. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and. Executive Council.

10.Audits

10.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if any of
the following conditions exist:

10.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds
received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most
recently completed fiscal year.

{m
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10.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations
receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

10.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security
and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual
financial audit.

10.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's
fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200,
Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

10.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings and any
associated corrective action plans. The Contractor shall submit quarterly
progress reports on the status of implementation of the corrective action
plan.

10.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual
financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the
close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

10.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000
from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding
source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits
performed by an independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment
determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

10.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it
is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held
liable for any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the
Department all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken, or which have been disallowed because of such an exception

fU)
NFI North, Inc. Exhibits Amendment #4 Contractor Initials

6/9/2022
RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-01-A04 Page4of4 Date



OocuSign Envelope ID: EAFD6363.724(M92E-8E0F-F496EF097354

Exhibit B-5 Amendment #4

Requirement Description
Fund

Source
Rate/Contract amounts''

Fast Forward Services"

1
Medicaid Benefit

enrolled

HCBS Benefit

with SA
Medicaid

Current Children's Mental Health

HCBC Medicaid Rate Schedule

(Hyperlink in Cell 1-6)

n  nOf, np-i IJ1 tr^r»-- o " o Cell^l-S

Link to Current Children's Mental Health HCBC Medicaid Rate

Schedule;

httDs://nhmmis.nh.aov/Dortals/wDs/wcm/connect/563ed7804c

87b06d8d46ffacbe5ab710/2020+Childrens+Mental+Health+H

CBS+Medicaid+Rate+Schedule.Ddf?MOD=AJPERES

2
Non Medicaid Benefit

enrolled kids

Medicaid billing
under ISO auth.

(H0041)
Medicaid $70.00/day

3
All Medicaid covered

children

Intensive In

home supports-
using ISO

authorization

(H0041)

Medicaid
$60/day

Bill to Contract
SPY 2022

Funds

SFY 2023

Funds

4

Uninsured or under

insured youth who
meet Fast Forward

eligibility

Non Medicaid

billable

State

General

Fund

dollars

Follows Children's Mental Health

HCBC Medicaid Rate Schedule

(Hyperlink in Cell 1-6.)

$230,000
inclusive of the

Amount of

Funding in
Exhibit B-6

Amendment #4

SFY 2022

Budget

$365,000
inclusive of

the Amount

of Funding in
Exhibit B-7

Amendment

#4 SFY 2023

Budget

r

5

Non-Medicaid youth
until enrolled in

Medicaid

Billing for all
services within

FAST Forward

array using youth
invoice

State

General

Fund

dollars

Follows both Children's Mental

Health HCBC Medicaid Rate

Schedule (Hyperlink in Cell 1-6)
and a payment of the $60.00 per

day for intensive in-home
services (If applicable).

6

Non Medicaid billable

Customizable Goods

and Services

Allowable

Customizable

Goods and

Services

State

General

Fund

dollars

Billed to contract per the Fast
Fonward Program Manual

guidelines for allowable uses.
Use youth invoice.

Enhanced Care Coordination

7

Psychiatric Oversight
- TRECC Psych

Up to 5 days per
hospitalization

billable

State

General

Fund

dollars

$70.00/day, up to a maximum of
five (5) days while enrolled.

8
Residential Oversight
- TRECC Residential

Up to 3 days per
week for

treatment

episode

State

General

Fund

Dollars

$70.00/day, up to a maximum of
three (3) days per week while

enrolled.

-03

NFI North, Inc.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-A04

Exhibit B-5 Amendment #4

Page 1 of 2
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Exhibit B-5 Amendment #4

Early Childhood- Up to 3 days per State $70.00/day, up to a maximum of
9 Enhanced Care week for General three (3) days per week while

Coordination treatment Fund enrolled.

episode Dollars
1  c

a n

NFI North. Inc.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-A04

Exhibit B-5 Amendment #4

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Initials
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Cw Manaoamani Entity S«>viCM lor FAST Forwanl Ei^ibii B4. Amondmcnt M

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BiddarfProprani Nima: NFUJorth,_lnc^

Budgat Raquaat for Care Manaoament Entity Sarvicei lor FAST Forwinl

Budget Period: SPY 2022 f7/1fa0?l«30r»221

Total Program Cost Contractor Share / Match Funded by DKHS contract share

Direct Indirect Totai Direct indirect Total Direct Indirect Total

Line Item Incremental Fixed Incrementai Fixed Incremental Fixed
1. Tout Salary/WagM S  3,543,570.00 S 352.857.00 3 3.896.427.00 3,523,570.00 3 352857.00 3 3,876.427.00 3 20.000.00 3  20.000.00

2. Emolovee Benefits S  882,14230 s 88.214.23 3 970.356.53 3 882.14230 3 88.214.23 3 970,356.53 s

3. Contulianis 6 3 . 3 3 3 3

4, Eoulomenl; s S 3 - 3 3 • 5 %

Rental S  44.600.00 $ 4.460.00 3 49.080.00 3 44,600.00 3 4,460.00 3 49.060.00 3 j

Reoair and Maintenance % 3 • 3 3 - s $

Purchas^DepreciatiQn S  62.000.00 s 6.200.00 3 66.200.00 62.000,00 3 S.200.00 3 68.200.00 3

S. Supplies: 6 3 - 3 3 - 3 s

Educaticnel S  45,500.00 3 4.550.00 3 50.050.00 3 45.500.00 3 4,550.00 3 50,050.00 3 3

Lab i - 3 • 3 3 s i

Pharmacv S 3 3 3 s $

Medical $ - 3 - 3 3 3

Office S  61.00000 i 6.100,00 3 67.100.00 3 61.000.00 3 6.100.00 3 67.100.00 3

S. Travel S  S21.000.00 62101.00 3 573.101.00 3 501.000.00 50.101.00 3 ssi.ioi.n 20.000.00 3  2000.00 3  22.000.00
7. Occupancy S  139.956.00 13.997.60 3 153.953.60 125.866.00 3 12.587.60 3 138.453.60 14.090.00 3  1.410.00 3  15.500.00

a. Current Ewenses $ - 3 3 • 3 -

TeleoTione i  84.50000 8.450.00 3 92.950.00 3 84,500.00 3 8.450.00 3 92.950.00

Posiaae S  2.000.00 s 200.00 3 2200.00 3 2.000.00 3 200.00 3 2.200.00

Subscriolions S 3 3 3

Audit ar>d Laoal S - 3 3 . 3 .

Insurartce S  32.30200 3.260.20 3 30.062.20 3 32.80200 3 3.260.20 3 36.082.20

Board Expensas 3 - 3 3 • 3 -

9. Softviare $  8.000.00 3 800.00 3 8.800.00 3 8,000.00 3 800.00 3 8.800.00

10. Mariteiirxi/Contfniinications S  18.000.00 1.600.00 3 19,800.00 3 18,000.00 3 i.eoo.m 3 19.800.00

11, Staff Education and Treinlno S  1279.200.00 3 127.920.00 3 1.407,120.00 3 1.104.200.00 3 110.420.00 3 1.214.620.00 3 175.000,00 3  17.500.00 3  192.500.00

12. Subconiracts/Aoreemants S  8.872.514.00 3 807.251.40 3 9.539.765.40 3 8.172,514.00 3 867.251.40 3 9.039.765.40 3 500.000.00 3 3  SOO.OCO.0O
13. Other (specA: deiaSs manoatorv): 3 3 3 • 3 •

Flex funds, other dieni eioense S  490.SOOOO 3 49,050.00 3 539.550.00 3 490.500.00 3 49.050.00 3 539.550.00 s

BiUir>Q for Uninsured 5  528.500.00 3 - 3 528.SO0.0O 3 • 3 . 3 3 528.500.00 3 3  528.500.00

S 3
- 3 3 • 3 • 3 • 3 i . 3

TOTAL S  16,415,784.30 1,587,231.43 3 18,003,015.73 15,138,194.30 1,566,321.43 3 16,724,515.73 3 1,257,S9a00 3 20,910.00 3  1,276,500.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NFI Norm, Inc.

RFP-2018-OBH-02-CAREM

EJdubit B4. Amertdmenl >4

Page 1 ol 1

Contractor Initiels

in/1027
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C«r« Managament Entdy Santca* for FAST FonniBrd Ejtfiibit a-7. AmandiiMnt (4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BiddarTProgram Name: NO North. lr>e.

Budget Request for Care Manioement Entity Services for FAST Forward

Budget Period; SFY 702} f7/1f?0?2-6/30r?023)

Total Program Cost Contractor Share / Match Funded by DHHS contract share

Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect ToUl

Line Item Incremental Fixed ncremental Fixed Incremental Fixed
1. Total Selary/Vt^es $  3.814.512.60 i 381.951.28 S 4,196.464.08 s 3.664.512.80 S 366.951.28 8 4,031.464.08 8 150.000.00 8 15.000.00 8  166.000.00

2. Emolovee Benefits S  957.427.99 95,742.80 5 1,053.170,79 5 917.427,99 5 91.742.80 8 1,009.170,79 40.000.00 8 4.000.00 8  44,000.00

3. Contuliants S  100.000.00 S S 100.000.00 $ 8 8 100.000.00 8 8  10G.OOO.CO
4. Eouipment: s i 5 . 5 8 - 8

Rwttal S  44.60000 s 4,460.00 S 49.060.00 5 44.eCO.CO 4.460.00 8 49.060.00 8

Reoair end M^tanance s 5 - S 8 - 8 s

PurchasWDeoredation S  82.00000 s 6.200.00 5 68.200.1X1 82.000.00 6.200.00 8 68.200.00 8 5

5. Supplies: s $ . 5 8 - 8

Educational S  4S.50000 s 4,550.00 S 50.050.00 5 45.500.00 4,550.00 8 50.050.00 8

lab s s S 8 8 8

PftarmacY s 5 5 8 8 %

Medical s 5 - 8 8 • 8 - 8

Office %  71.000.00 s 7,100.00 5 78.100.00 5 81.000.00 S 6.100.00 8 67,100.00 8 10,000.00 8 1.000,00 8  11.000.00

B. Travel S  551.00000 55.101.00 5 606.101.00 S 501.000.00 s 50.101.00 8 551,101.00 8 50.000.00 8 5.000.00 8  55.000.00

7. Occupancy $  149.9SS.0O 14,997.60 5 164.953.60 5 125.868.00 5 12.587.60 8 138.453.60 8 24,090.00 8 2,410.00 8  26.500.00

8. Current Ermenses % 5 - $ 8 • 8 8

Telephone S  ' 94.50000 $ 8.450.00 5 102.950.00 S 84.500.00 $ 8,450.00 8 92.950.00 8 10.000.00 8 8  10.000.00

Postage $  2.000.00 s 200.00 2.200,00 5 2.000.00 8 200.00 8 2.200.00 8

Subscriptions s $ 8 8 8 8

Audit er>d Legal s S - 8 8 8 8

Insurance S  37.302.00 s 3,280.20 5 40.582.20 5 32.802.00 8 3.280.20 8 36.082.20 4.500.00 8 8  4.500.00

Board Expenses s 5 - 8 8 . 8 s

9. Software S  8.000.00 s 800.00 8.800.00 S 8.000.00 8 800.00 8 8.800.00 8 8

to. Martcetino/Communications S  23.000.00 i 2.300.00 S 25.300.00 5 18,000.00 8 1,600.00 8 19,800.00 8 5.000.00 8 500.00 8  5.500.00

11. Staff Education and Tralnina S  1.304.200.00 s 130.42O.C0 S 1.434.620,00 S 1.104.200.00 110.420.00 8 1.214.620.00 8 200.000.00 8 20.000.00 8  220.000.00

12. Subconvacit/Agreements S  8.722.514,00 i 872.251.40 5 9.594.765.40 s 8,17^514,00 872.251.40 8 9.044.765.40 8 550.000.00 8 8  550.000.00

13. Other (specific detalsmanaatorv): s - 5 - 8 - 8 8 8

Ftex fur>ds. other dient Koense S  54O.S0O.0O s 49.0S0.X S 589.550.00 5 490.500.00 8 49.050.00 8 539.550.00 8 50.000.CO 8 8  50.000.00

Bdirrg for Uninsured S  680.000.00 s 5 680.000.00 5 8 8 8 680,000,00 8 8  680.000.00

$ 5 • 5 • 8 • 8 8 i i
TOTAL $  17.208,012.79 1.838.854.28 S 18.844,887.07 15,334,422.79 8 1,588,944.28 8 16,923.367.07 8 1,873,59000 8 47.910.00 8 1,921,500.00

Indirect At A Percent of Direct 9.5%

NFI North. Inc.

RFP-20ie-0BtM2-CAREM

Erdtibil &7. Amendment «4

Page 1 ol 1

Contractor Irtiti



DocuSign Envelope ID: EAFD6363-7240-492E-8EOF-F496EF097354

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to'have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials^"
Workplace Requirements 6/9/2022

cu/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date___
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

6/9/2022

Vendor Name: NFi North, inc.

OoeoStgn^d by:

Date Name:'^"^^'^'^'^- Dann, Pho
Title. Executive Director

fU)
Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials^

Workplace Requirements 6/9/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 3100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: nfi North, inc.

— OocuSigned by:

6/9/2022 i. pLJ)
Diti Dann, PhD

Executive Director

FID
Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials

6/9/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge andf'' '

l\J)
Exhibil F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials^— ■

And Other Responsibility Matters 6/9/2022
cu/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: nfi North, inc,

DoeuSigned by:

f/Kt/L (/, fU)6/9/2022

Dite Dann, PhD

Executive Director

l>U)
Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials^

And Other Responsibility Matters 6/9/2022
cu/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: EAFD6363.7240-492E-8E0F-F496EF097354

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnatlon requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of sen/ices or benefits, on the basts of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 -34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance, it does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

•OS

Exhibit G FID
Contractor Initials^

Certirication o( Compliance witfi re<)uirements pertaining to Fetleral Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of FaiUvBased Organizations
and Whistleblower protections

6/27/14 6/9/2022
Rev. i<w2i/i4 Page 1 of 2 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: EAFD6363-7240-492E-8EOF-F496eF097354

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: nfi North, inc.

—OocuSigned by:

6/9/2022 i- J)0liAJlA.f fLI)
Date Name^^au''t'''t; Dann, PhD

Title. Executive Director

PiJDExhibit G

Contractor Initials'
Corttficstion of Compliance with requiremants pafiaining lo Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of PeiUvBaeed Organizations

arK) Whistieblower protections
6/27/14 6/9/2022
Rev. 10/21/14 Page 2 of 2 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part 0 - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: NFI North, inc.

—Docu9^n*d by:

6/9/2022 i. \jo>3jOA.y
Date NameV^^^ain^'E Oann, PhD

Title. Executive Director

FU)
Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials^
Environmental Tobacco Smoke 6/9/2022

cu/DHHS/110713 Page 1 of 1 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #}
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemment, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: NFi North, inc.

—OocuStgn*d by;

6/9/2022

I3ann. Phb

Executive Director

Extiibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 6/9/2022

cu/OHHS/110713 Page 1^2 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate. . . .

04-3161042
1. The DUNS number for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHSM10713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Initials

Date
^/9/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NFI NORTH, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 06, 1992. 1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 175745

Certificate Number: 0005764736

SI
iSf.

u.

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.Kcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 22nd day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Dellie Champagne ^ , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of NFI North. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on March 28th 2022 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Paul L Dann. PhD. Executive Director (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of NFI North, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 5/23/22 (Kljya,;oaiO:;4EDTl
mfe Chmpcmm
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Dellie Champagne
Title: Clerk

Rev. 0ZI1AI20
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Certif.ofAuthorityforCorp.orLLC
Final Audit Report 2022-05-23

Created; 2022-05-23

By: Paul Dann (pauldann@nafl.com)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAHPKLIZA4yLUZJoerNpeeGnlHnORQcXsX

"Certif.ofAuthorityforCorp.orLLC" History

Q Document created by Paul Dann (pauldannignafi.com)

2022-05-23 - 2:03:44 PM GMT- IP address: 76.179.114.106

Eii. Document emailed to Dellie Champagne (dchampagne(gsavechildren.org) for signature

2022-05-23 - 2:04:18 PM GMT

Q Email viewed by Dellie Champagne (dchampagne@$avechildren.brg)

2022-05-23 - 2:23:53 PM GMT- IP address: 104.47.59.254

Document e-signed by Dellie Champagne (dchampagnetgsavechildren.org)

Signature Date: 2022-05-23 • 2:24:40 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 73.47.42.46

O Agreement completed.
2022-05-23 - 2:24:40 PM GMT

Adobe Acrobat Sign
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ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OWYYYY)

5/25/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

12 Gill Street Suite 5500

Woburn, MA 01801

855 874-0123

n?mJ*^^ Susan Kania
TaWo. Exn: 855 874-0123 [aIS. noI: 781 -376-5035
li^nllFss: Susan.Kania@usl.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICl»

INSURER A : Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

NFI North Inc.

40 Park Lane

Contoocook, NH 03229

INSURER B: North River Insurance Company 21105

INSURER C :

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
INSR

SUBR
WVO POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DDfYYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MWDD/YYYY) LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

PHPK2355958 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE

?Ea o^frencel
MED EXP (A/iy one persofi)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

LOCPOLICY

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)

$1.000.000

$1.000.000

$5.000

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

$3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY

~x ANY AUTO

PHPK2355953 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 si ,000.000

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

Comp $1,000

BODILY INJURY (Per parson)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

Coll $1,000

BODILY INJURY (Per accldeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accldeni)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB795259 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 EACH (XCURRENCE $10.000.000

AGGREGATE $10.000.000

X RETENTION $10000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y / N
ANY PROPRIETORff'ARTNER/EXECUTIVEl 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

4067369658 57/01/2021 07/01/2022
V PER
A STATUTE

OTH-

£fi_

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

Professional

Abuse

PHPK2355958

PHPK2355958

01/01/2022

01/01/2022

01/01/2023

01/01/2023

1MIU3MIL

1MIU3MIL

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached it more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Dept Health & Human Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

t

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S36087869/M34246177

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
MFMZP
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NFI North Mission Statement

Inspiring and empowering people to reach their full
potential so that they can live successfully within their
own home and community
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June 30. 2021

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon)
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mm
KPMG LLP

Two Financial Center

60 South Street

Boston. MA 02111

Independent Auditors' Report

The Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (NFIN), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, Implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NFIN as of June 30, 2021, and the,changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in note 1 to the financial statements, in 2021, NFIN adopted Accounting Standards Update
No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), as amended. Our opinion Is not modified with respect to this matter.

KKMi) LLR ii Oi'l.M-.Uf luMi'y ("itlHirf.iliiii irifj .• tirtrr.lAt (itrn i;l
OtH K^"rAl3 fjlol'al 'xipni/nii'xi f,l fniU'li.Wnf'ini v.ith
KRW'.j liMPin'i'ioii'il litnii"}'!. ii Eii(;li-jh ciMiitutr,' lirt.itfj'J l>v
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 13, 2021 on
our consideration of NFIN's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of NFIN's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering NFIN's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

LL7>

October 13, 2021
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NFI NORTH. INC.

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2021

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Due from affiliate (note 8)
Investments (note 4)

Total current assets

Property and equipment (note 5):
Land

Buildings and improvements
Equipment and furnishings
Motor vehicles

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Lease right-of-use assets (note 6)

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt (note 5)
Current portion of operating lease liabilities (note 6)
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion (note 5)
Due to affiliate long-term (note 8)
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion (note 6)
Other liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

4,271,586

3,909,136

131,777

84,189

3,310,091

11,706,779

685,632

9,271,794

620,547

868,985

11,446,958

(6,704,377)

4,742,581

50,193

12,493

$  16,512,046

346.571

30,440
65,784

1,439,513
808,697
.205,998

2,897,003

2,092,644

202,303

19,753

377,167

2.691,867

5,588,870

10,680,101
243,075

10,923,176

$  16,512,046

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Activities

Year endedJune 30, 2021

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions;
Revenues and other support:

Contracts, net $ 34,366,090
Contributions:

In-kind 949,252

Interest and dividends 69,007
Miscellaneous (492)

35,383,857

Net assets released from restrictions 11,886

Total revenues and other support 35,395,743

Expenses:
Program services 28,939,446
Supporting services (note 8) 3,357,535

Total expenses 32,296,981

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions before nonoperating activities 3,098,762

Nonoperating activities:
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments 217,428

Gain on sale of property and equipment 50,812

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 3,367,002

Changes in net assets with donor restrictions:
Contributions and grants 60,820
Net assets released from restrictions (11,886)

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 48,934

Increase in net assets 3,415,936

Net assets at beginning of year 7,507,240

Net assets at end of year $ _^^i923J76_

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended June 30. 2021

Program Supporting
services services Total

Personnel expenses:
Salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefits $  20.431,305 1,640,793 22,072.098

Other expenses:
Contracted services 3,712.494 1,393,045 5,105,539
Other direct costs 1.251,479 159,703 1,411,182
In-kind 949,252 — 949,252

Consumables 866,381 — 866,381
Occupancy 684,923 34,728 719,651

Equipment 253,672 55,271 308,943
Transportation 201,784 17,262 219,046
Interest 89,131 7,008 96,139

8,009,116 1,667,017 9,676,133

Depreciation and amortization 499,025 49,725 548,750

Total expenses $  28,939,446 3,357,535 32,296,981

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments
Amortization of right-of-use asset
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses and other, current assets

Due from affiliate

Other assets

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other accrued expenses

Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

Operating lease liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

Supplemental data:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of operating lease liabilities

3,415,936-

548,750

(50,812)

(217,428)
43,034

(31,248)

(56,686)
(58,426)

757

(108,175)
575,364

295,005

(7,539)

(106,793)
(43,034)

4,198,705

(1,452,692)
(1,807,378)

51,701

275,515

(2,932,854)

(198,156)

(198,156)

1,067,695

3,203,891

4,271,586

96,139

46,748

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

NFI North, Inc. (NFIN) is a not-for-profit organization whose purpose is to provide community-based social
services to individuals and their families. NFIN is a subsidiary of North American Family Institute, Inc.
(NAFI), which is the sole member of NFIN's board of directors. Substantially all of NFIN's revenues are
derived from services contracted with the States of Maine and New Hampshire Departments of Human
Services, Children, Youth and Families, Medicaid, private insurers, and local public school districts.

(a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, have
been prepared to focus on NFIN as a whole and to present balances and transactions according to the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are
classified as follows;

With donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met by
actions of NFIN and/or the passage of time.

Without donor restrictions - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the related
assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions and/or time restrictions. Expenses are reported as
decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on investments and other assets

or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions unless their
use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or law. Expirations of restrictions on net assets with donor
restrictions are reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets. Expirations
of restrictions with donor restrictions occur when donor-imposed stipulated purposes have been
accomplished and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed. If an expense is incurred for a purpose for
which both net assets with and without donor restrictions are available, a donor-imposed restriction is
fulfilled to the extent of the expense incurred unless the expense is for a purpose that is directly
attributable to another specified external source of revenue.

(b) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
(ASC Topic 606), revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the promised
goods or services is transferred in an amount that reflects the consideration to which we expect to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services (i.e., the transaction price).

Revenues from contracts are primarily derived from cost reimbursement, per diem and fee-for service
contracts. Cost reimbursement contracts are recognized with expenses being reimbursed for services
delivered over the course of client enrollment period which is generally as expenses are incurred. Rate
based contracts are recognized with expenses being reimbursed for services delivered over the course
of client stay based on an established rate with the related funding source which is generally when
services are provided. Revenues from contracts consisted of 16% for cost reimbursement contracts
and 84% for rate-based contracts for the year ended June 30, 2021.

(Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

(c) Income Taxes

NFIN is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and is
generally exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(a). NFIN has taken no significant uncertain
tax positions.

(d) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(e) Concentration of Risk

NFIN receives the majority of its funding from state contracts that are renewable annually. Legislative
budgets could significantly impact NFIN's ability to start new programs and to continue existing
programs.

(f) Cash and Equivalents

All short-term investments with an original maturity at purchase of three months or less are considered
cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows. Cash and equivalents within investment
accounts are considered to be investments for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated property, at fair value at the
date of gift. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives;

Buildings and improvements 15-33.3 years
Equipment and furnishings 2-10 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated or amortized according to the organization's normal
depreciation policy except that the time period shall be the shorter of: 1) the useful life of the leasehold
improvements, or 2) the remaining years of the lease. The remaining years of the lease include the
years in the lease renewals that are reasonably assured.

(h) Self-Insurance

NFIN is self-insured for employee medical healthcare costs. As of June 30. 2021. the estimated liability
for healthcare claims incurred but not yet reported or paid was $128,172 and is included in accrued
payroll and related liabilities in the accompanying statement of financial position.

(Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

(i) In-Kind Contributions

In-kind contributions are generally recognized at fair value on the date received. During fiscal 2021,
NFIN received in-kind contributions of rent, equipment and furnishings, and consumables amounting to
$949,252.

(i) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value represents the price that NFIN would receive upon the sale of an asset or paid upon the
transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the measurement date.
NAFI uses a three-tier hierarchy to categorize those assets and liabilities based on those valuation
methodologies employed. The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in the three broad levels
listed below.

•  Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments.

•  Level 2 - other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar financial
instruments, interest rates, credit risk, etc.).

•  Level 3 - significant unobservable inputs (including NFIN's own assumptions in determining the fair
value of financial instruments).

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3
inputs. NFIN utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimizes
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible.

(k) Leasing

NFIN determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. NFIN has leases under which it is obligated
as a lessee. Operating leases as a lessee are included in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the
statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets represent NFIN's right to use an underlying asset for the lease term. Lease
liabilities represent NFIN's liability to make lease payments arising from the lease. Operating
right-of-use assets and related obligations are recognized at commencement date based on the
present value of lease payments over the lease term discounted using an appropriate incremental
borrowing rate. The incremental borrowing rate is based on the information available at
commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments. The value of an option to
extend or terminate a lease is reflected to the extent it is reasonably certain management will exercise
that option.

(I) Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), as amended, that requires,
among other things, a lessee to recognize a right-of-use asset representing an entity's right to use the
underlying asset for the lease term and a liability for tease payments on the balance sheet, regardless
of classification of a lease as an operating or finance lease.

(Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2021

NAFI adopted the following practical expedients and elected the following accounting policies related to
this standard:

-  Elected not to reassess prior conclusions related to the identification, classification, and accounting
for indirect costs for leases that commenced prior to July 1, 2020;

-  Elected to utilize a risk-free rate (e.g, U.S. Treasury bill rate) to discount the lease payments:

-  Elected the short-term lease accounting policy allowing lessees not to recognize right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities with a term of twelve months or less; and

-  Elected not to separate lease and non-lease components for certain equipment lease asset
categories.

NFIN adopted ASU 2016-02 in fiscal year 2021 using the modified retrospective approach. Right-of-use
assets and related lease obligations of $93,228 and $93,228 were recognized as of July 1, 2020 and
are included in the statement of financial position. The guidance did not materially impact NFIN's
results of operations.

(m) COVID-19 Pandemic

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus {C0\/ID-19) a pandemic.
NFIN continues to receive funding from state and federal contracts, and is able to continue its
operations in providing community-based social services to individuals and their families. NFIN
received emergency funding from the States of Maine and New Hampshire, to assist potential
additional costs associated with the COVID-19 pandemic.

(n) Subsequent Events

NFIN has evaluated events subsequent to June 30, 2021 and through October 13, 2021, which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued. NFIN has determined there are no

material events that would require recognition or disclosure in this report through this date.

(2) Financial Asset and Liquidity Resources

As of June 30, 2021, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general
expenditures, such as operating expenses and scheduled principal payments on debt, were as follows;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,028,511
Accounts receivable, net 3,909,136

Investments 3,310,091

Due from affiliate 84.189

Total financial assets available within one year $ ̂^^^^33^92^

As part of the NFIN's liquidity management, NFIN maintains working capital lines of credit, which provides
liquidity available to meet general expenditures as liabilities and other obligation come due.

10 (Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2021

(3) Line of Credit

NAFI makes available to its subsidiaries, including NFIN, NAFI Connecticut. Inc. (NAFICT), NFI Vermont.
Inc. (NFIV) and NFI Massachusetts. Inc. (NFI), an on demand $8,000,000 line of credit from ID Bank. The
line of credit bears interest at a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, plus
0.50% per annum. (3.75% as of June 30. 2021). Borrowings under the line are jointly guaranteed by NAFI,
NFIN, NAFICT, NFIV and NFI and are collateralized by substantially all of their assets.

Borrowings under the line of credit are due upon demand, and the line is subject to annual renewal. As of
June 30, 2021. there were no borrowings outstanding under this line of credit.

In addition, for the year ended June 30, 2021, NAFI has entered into Letter of Credit agreements with TD
Bank for the year ended June 30. 2021 for a total of $1.045,893. The Letter of Credit agreements can be
utilized by all subsidiaries in the aggregate of $8,000,000 and are not collateralized by additional cash. The
Letter of Credit agreements are a requirement of NAFI's workers' compensation carrier.

(4) Investments

Investments are carried at fair value. Investments at June 30, 2021 consisted of the following:

Equities

Cash and equivalents

Corporate bonds

$ 1,481,457

1,001,084

827,550

3,310,091

All investments are valued using Level 1 inputs in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, except
corporate bonds which are considered Level 2. There were no transfers between fair value levels during
the year.

(5) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2021 consisted of the following:

Type and Interest rate as of June 30, 2021

Mortgages payable, secured by real estate:
0.00%-8.00% fixed

Vehicle notes secured by automobiles:
0.00%-8.59% fixed

Total long-term debt

Less: current portion

Total long-term debt, net of current portion

Fiscal year

due

2022-2031

2022-2024

Amount

2,401,837

37,378

2,439,215

(346,571)

2,092,644

11 (Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2021

Certain mortgages payable to housing authorities provide that a portion of the principal will be forgiven at
the end of the loan period if the underlying properties are used to provide housing in accordance with
stipulated conditions. In addition, certain mortgages payable contain various prepayment penalties.

NFIN is required to maintain certain debt service coverage ratios.

Scheduled repayments of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Amount due

346,571

122.463

125,811

124.464

211,693

1,508,213

2,439,215

Interest expense was $96,139 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

(6) Leases

NFIN is committed to annual payments under several long-term non-cancelable {except under certain
circumstances) operating leases for property, vehicles and equipment through fiscal year 2024.

Lease expense reported in occupancy and equipment in the statement of functional expenses amounted to
$47,009 for the year ended June 30, 2021, the components of which are as follows:

2021

Lease cost;

Operating lease expense
Short-term lease expense

Total lease expense

46,748

261

47,009

12 (Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Payments due include options to extend leases that are reasonably certain through fiscal year 2024 and
are summarized below:

Amount due

Year ending June 30:

2022 $ 30,523

2023 17,098

2024 2,765

50,386

Less: amounts representing interest (643)

$  51,029

The weighted-average remaining lease term for operating leases is 21 months. The weighted average
discount rate for operating leases is 0.19%.

Rental expense amounted to $44,523 for the year ended June 30, 2021, including $44,134 of related party
property charges described In note 8. These expenses are included in occupancy and equipment expense
in the accompanying statement of functional expenses.

(7) Retirement Plan

NFIN has a qualified defined contribution retirement plan for eligible employees to which annual
contributions are made at the discretion of NFIN's board of directors. NFIN elected to contribute $249,912

for the year ended June 30, 2021. These expenses are included in employee benefits expense within the
accompanying statement of functional expenses.

(8) Related Party Transactions

North American Family Institute, Inc. (NAFI), an affiliate, charges an administrative management fee for
supporting service costs that NAFI incurs on behalf of the subsidiaries. These allocated costs amounted to
$1,558,503 for the year ended June 30, 2021, and have been included in supporting services expenses in
the accompanying statement of activities and contracted services expenses within the statement of
functional expenses.

In addition, NFIN pays NAFI a property charge for usage of certain fixed assets of NAFI. This charge was
$44_ 134 for the year ended June 30, 2021, and has been included in program services expenses in the

accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses.

Cost reimbursement underpayments resulted in a balance due to NAFI as of June 30, 2021 in the amount
of $202,303. This amount has been reported as due to affiliate in the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position and is expected to be received within one year.

13
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Cost reimbursement overpayments have resulted in a balance due from NAFI as of June 30, 2021 In the
amount of $84,189. This amount has been reported as due from affiliate in the accompanying statement of
financial position and is expected to be paid within one year.

NAFI and affiliated corporations (NFIN, NFIVT, NAFICT and NFIM) may periodically make short term loans,
not to exceed one year, to its affiliated corporations, secured by documentation evidencing such
indebtedness. For the year ended June 30, 2021, there were no short-term loan transactions with NFIN.

14
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KPMG LLP

Two Financial Center

60 South Street

Boston, MA 02111

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors

NFI North. Inc.:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (NFIN), which comprise
the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 13, 2021. This report included an emphasis of matter paragraph
referring to NFIN's adoption of Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, Leases {Topic 842), as amended, in
2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NFIN's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NFIN's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of NFIN's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees. In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section,
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies In internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NFIN's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

KPMG LLPl ii Dol.nv.Mi- linmi'J li'jS'ili'.y iuiflnifiilnij 'it"! rn'ir'ilAr liirii Ol
if.fi K/-HG !jlol'al i.r it)'.'m!"fi Iiriiir- .iilili.n'f'l '.viih
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the NFIN's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the NFIN's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any^other purpose.

LCP

October 13, 2021
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Adjuncl Facully, Unlvcisiiy or'New Hnmpshire 2014-prcscm
Rnard Mcmlxr New Hampshire As.sociniion tor the Hiind, 2012 to prc.scni
In.siituic for Social liinovntion Research fellow 2010 in 2014-
Don Hii.shncll Schnlar-ship Award tor Organi/alional nnti Social Change 2007
Vice C'hiiir Board of Managers Commtmiiy Provider Network 2002-2006
Sccrctai y Roard of .Manngei.s Cnmnniniiy Prox idcr Network 1999-2003
Roaid Member I lavenwood Heritage Heights. Chair Planning Committee 2002. Vice Prcsidcm
of the Board ori)ireeiors 2006, President Hocird of Director 2008-201 1
Rnard Member M.iinc Association of Mental Health .Sciviccs 2001 -present
Leadership NH class ofSOOl
Piesidcni Ho}>kinton Independent School Board of Directors 1999-2009
former Ma.ssfwluisetts-I.icensed-Socin) Worker • Lie. fl 300178 "
Clinician. Nnrihcasiern Family Center, Mclrosc Ma. 1988-1989
( nnsuliani. NI-CMHS, Ajiicsbiii-y, Ma. 1988-1990
Trainer. Community Programs Innovations 1986-1993

TRAJNINCS, WORKSHOPS AND PRESF.NTATIONS (parliat list)

I hc Rc.silicncy Facloi*; Our Role in .Advrmcing Child nnd Youth Well Being- Keynote
Speaker
(T.ild and faniih Prnx idcr Neivvoik Anmial C'otdci'cncc 2016

VVorhinn Aliinnce: The Htiiiding Blocks for Knsurhig Sticcessrul Outcomes
Child and family Provider Nciwovk Annual Conlciencc 2016

Lending xviti) Vision Across nnd Within the Orgnnl/niidn
Senior Leadership Conference Alliance lor Strong Childicn and families 2015

C'nlruntl Foundations in Mcntfll Heiilth Practice
Nfl North Coic Training 2l)l 5

Con.scious Organisations; Stories and Practices from (he Nonprofit ninl For Profit Sector



DocuSign Envelope ID; EAFD6363-7240-492E-8E0F-F496EF097354

IiUcniiiiionul Assocltiiinn Gli>hal Cunl^icncc ?0M

Supervision. Mnnogcmcul ond Lcn(lc»shi|); Cross curicnCs uiUiln llic mn nmilvi-
cuniniuniry
Rhode Island f'sychulogicnl ('cnlcrs 2014

Wurkplavu Divcifshy nixJ Inclusion
Human Kesnurcc Associollun ol Greaicr ('oncoi'd 201 >

Cultural Diversity
Mcninmk C(unuy House of Corrections 2015

(fcnerutlvc l.cudiTship
Tobi.'is I.eiKlersblp Iiisthutc 20! 2

Kmcincnl lA'adciship in Nonprord OrgnnuHtions
Scuioi l.cudcfslup C.'unl'cicncc ACI''2012

Lcadci'ship Develupincnt
NAl"! Nalionol C^onfercncc 201 I

CcnecHlivo Lciidrrship: IDxpluring l.cndcrshlp Development Within Orgniiizaliuos ontl
Tcnms

Sctrior Leadership Conference 2011

C.ulturnl Diversity in Ihc.Clnssroam. _
NhC Filcuhy Development Workshop 201 1

Working AlllaiKC >vitiiin the Clossroour
Cinitoocook School Summer 2008

l.cadcrship Development Scminar
Nfl l.oiidcislup bcvelopnicnt Progiam Spiing'Siiinmci 2O08

lichnvior Miinagcmcnl
NFI NoHh Core Training 2007

Meaning Making tvilhiii Organtzations
NPI North l.oadei'ship Piolcssion.r! Devclopiticnl 2006
RcintcgrotivcScn ices for Youth
OCYl- amuiol Cunfcicncc 2006

Difficull People and Conflict IVlauagemeiil
DCYF Annual (Ainfercncc 2006
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The Kolc of Slory rcUin|» In l.csulcrsliip
NAl-i Naiional Conrercncc 2003

COURSES TADCHT

Nvtv College Ctitdunfc flnd Cotitinuing Stiiilics

MusUts hi Health Cnr« <iill three credit cnurses)

•  Stinciurc Oi' Sociiil Pioblcins

•  l.oiig rcrni C'aa-
•  l-lcfllih Cure Mnnagemcni

Masters in Comnniiiit) Mi-ntnl Henllh Coiinsciing (three to four ercdii courses)

•  Mentnl Health Management
• Mulitciihural Issues in Mental Health Delivery
•  Career Dcvclopincm and Counseling

•  Research Meihoils

•  Capstone Faciliuilion

Mnstcrs in business A(!mlnisii*ntion

•  Sitiiicgic Planning and Policy
•  Oiguni/aiionui Monagcinem imd Ixndcrship
• Oigani/Blional Coinmunicaiioii. Negotiation and Coiinici Resoluiion
•  Strategic Capstone

• Orgiinivaiiinnul Leadership and Change

;MiisIcr.s in Health Cure Mmingcmenf

•  Dynamics of Nonprofit Govcrnnncc

University of New Hampshire

Masters in Public Adiulnistrnlion

•  Organi^nlion and Managemciii in the Public uivJ NonjMoril Sccinr
•  Rffcctivc Change Managemom

H\.'fert:nwiAvmlabic on Reanesi
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Luke Revnatxi, MBA

Executive team member with experience leading operations in behavioral health and disability
service systems.

NFI North. Inc.

Chief Operating Officer Aprii 2021-Present

Responsible for daily operations of all agency programs
Lead and supervise all strategic plan operations
Collaborate with Executive Leadership team on strategic initiatives and operational processes
Communicate with the CEO and Board of Directors on agency goals and initiatives
Represent NFI North with state partners and the general public
Oversee new business development and strategic opportunities
Oversee relationships with vendors, subsidiaries, and partners

University of New Hampshire

Director of Operations, Cenfer for START Services, institute on Disability, July 2019'Apr 2021

Operational leadership for START Mental Health and Intellectual Disability Program
Develop and implement strategic operating plans to align with UNH goals
Develop programmatic cost projection proposals for various state government systems
Member of the Institute on Disability at University of New Hampshire management team
Research and identify opportunities to leverage state and federal Medicaid and MCO
funds forprogrammatic use

Mv Health Mv Resources (MHMR^ of Tarrant County 2005 through 2019

Chief Operating Officer of Disabiiity Services May 2017-June 2019

•  Chief Operations Officer for Disability Services, leading services to 4000+ people with
disabilitiesmonthly

•  Develop strategic operating plans to achieve agency mandates
•  Responsible for daily operations and supervision of 500 full-time staff
•  Responsible for oversight for state funded Authority Operations
•  Responsible for operation of Provider function operations, including HCBS programs and ICF

homes

•  Develop and oversee $30 million annual operations budget, including 20M+ In Medicaid funds
•  Lead development team and supervise first crisis Intervention and prevention program in

Texas:expanded contract across the state for further implementation
o Award winner for Special Services to the START National Team

•  Establish cost analysis of program operations resulting in net operational increase of
revenuesexceeding 1M

•  Oversight of Housing Grants, Supported Employment Operations, and Shelter Plus Care Programs
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Oversight of programs funded through Health Human Services Commission, Office of the
Governorand Center for Medicaid Services 1115 Waiver

Senior Program Director of Disability Services 2012-17

Program Director 2011-12

Program Manager 2010-11

Program Specialist 2009-10

Service Coordination 2005-09

Education

Master of Business Administration University of Texas-Permian Basin

Bachelor of Arts In Psychology Texas State University
•  Minor-Criminal Justice

Communitv Leadership

New Hampshire Children's Behavioral Health Workforce Development Leadership Team
•  State

Leadership Fort Worth, Class of 2016
•  Community engagement leadership development course designed to foster civic leadership

skillsand education opportunities

Samaritan House Board of Directors

•  Board member providing support for non-profit providing support services and residential
support to individuals with HIV/AIDS, Mental Illness, and other specialneeds

MH Housing Development of Tarrant County Board of Directors
•  Board member for the property management organization providing housing

supports toindivlduals with mental illness

IDD Council of Tarrant County Board of Directors
•  Board member for non-profit community group with a mission of increasing awareness,

promotinglncluslon and providing education about disabilities in the community

IDD Directors Consortium

•  Member of statewide leadership group of 39 Community Centers charged with policy
advisementand stakeholder response for more than 50,000 people with disabilities in Texas

Texas Health and Human Services STAR Kids Workgroup
•  Member legislatively appointed group charged with providing policy design for newly

implementedManaged Care platform for 180,000 children with disabilities in Texas

YMCA Soccer, Basketball, Baseball Coaching Volunteer

Hennlker Youth Athletics, Assistant Coach

2013-2018

2019-present

Luke Reynard
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KRISTI VAZIFDAR

FINANCIAL EKPERTtSE PROFILE

•  finonchi Repon'mg •  A dyrsamlc team leader who leverages positive energy.

•  Casti and Credit

Monagemeni

humor and keen intelligence to inspire, motivate, and

guide team members to optimal success.

•  Budget Creation and

Analysis

•  Respected financial professional, with a proven record of

success driving operations lor growth and maximizing
cost efficiency.

•  Payroll Management
•  Insightful and ethical MBA experienced with strategic

•  Suotegtc Ptonning planning lor, and management and analysis of, multi-

•  f/nonc/ef Training and
million dollar budgets.

Management

■  Accounts Poyatde and

Receivable

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE '

Nfl. North. Inc., Comoocook, NH. FEBRUARY 2016 - PRESENT

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Reporting 10 CEO. principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the
organisation's 18 million dollar annual operating budget in our twenty programs across Maine and
New Hampshire and managing a staff of 7. Provides critical oversight over each aspect of financial
operations including budget creation and management.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council, Nashua, NH. DECEMBER 2015 -

FEBRUARY 2016

INTERIM FINANCE MANAGER

Heporling to CEO, principal (Inancial leader responsible for overall financial management of the
organisation's 13 million dollar annual operating budget serving Hiilsborough CourMy and managing a
staff of 10.

Key Accomplishments:

•  Provided program analysis to advise on future direction of resources.
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•  Manage accouniing and fitiance issues including monthly close, revenue recognition and
analysis, policy interpretations, balance sheet reconcilian'ons and daily productivi'ty of ali
finances.

•  Consolidated business team to save appioximately 18% of departmental personnel costs.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2009 - MAY 201S

FINANCE DIRECTOR

Reporting to CEO. principal financial leader responsible for overall financial inanagemeiit of the
organiraiion's 3,5 million dollar annual operating budget serving 4000 visitors annudlfy* Manage 2 full
lin>e seasonal employees and additional financial supervision ol 5 seasonal employees-

Key Accomplishments:

•  Prepare and manage (he annual budget and all financial reports as needed by Ihe CEO. Finance
Committee and Board ol Directors.

•  Manage accounting and finance Issues including mcnihly close, Accounts Receivable, Accounts
Payable, policy interpretations, balance sheet reconciliat'ons and daily productivfty of ali
finances.

•  Prepare financial statements and reporting for CEO, Finance Committee and Board of Directors;
including monthly reconciliation of revenues and expenses, with appropriate variation
exptanaliuns and analysis

•  Critically ci/aluate new, or renewal contracts and aisnuai corporate insurance policies for

appropriateness.

«  Key contributor ol 3 year (2011 - 2013 and 2014 - 2016) strategic plans, authoring the financial
tactics.

•  Developed and executed a weekly matrix to analyre payroll for HO seasonal hourly staff to
successluKy keep seasonal salaries under budget for the past throe years saving $30,000 plus
annually.

•  Introduced seasonal weekly budget meetings with Department Heads to share updated (iisancial
information and collaborate on seasonal budget management.

•  Created and implemented internal control and purchasing procedures.

•  Manage preparation and ft'eldwork lor annual external audit process.

Star island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2004 - 2008

BUSINESS & FINANCE MANAGER

Promoted to leadership role supporting all accounting and financial aspects of mainlarxf and on island

offices.

Key Accompiishmenls:

•  Created and implemerited Finance Handbook as a guide for staff and Finance Committee.

•  Analyzed seasonal payroll and daily rate compensation structure, implemented time clocks to

pay nonexempt seasonal staff per hour saving S% annually on seasonal payroll.
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•  leadership and daY-io-day nianagemcot of seosonal on island stores [book shop and lobby
shop) purchased nil inventory, inanaged staff and alt inventory controls.

•  Compile detailed information to prepare arsd submit regulatory filings for town, state, federal

•  Ensured compliance with audit standards and proper revenue recognition.

•  Staff liaison to finance Committee.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2000 - 2003

ACCOUNTANT

i-iired (o process Accouists Payable and Payroll reporting to the Executive Director

Key Accomplishments:

•  Assessed all accounting procedures and eliminated (he need for external accounting firm

•  Implemented cash management protocols to eliminate overdrafts and fees.

V  Researched, purchased and implemented nevv accounting software and revised Gertcral Ledger
account structure for efficiency.

•  Advised creation of Purchasing Agent position to coosoiidote staff worktoad and ntaximize
productivity.

Wolf Coach Company (acquired by 13 Communications), Auburn, fVOA,
ACCOUNTANT, 1997 • 1999

OFFICE ASSISTANT. 1995 - 1997

COMPUTER SKILLS

Highly skilled in Excel. Proficient In MS Office including PowerPoint, Microsoft Dynamics Great

Plains and Management Reporter, Blackbaud Financial Edge, Fund IZ Accounting. Paychex
Paylink and Paychex Online Payroll. Apprentice level In Evoiv and LWSI

Previous experience in QuickBooks Pro, and Peachtree Accounting (now Sage)

COIVIMUNITY INVOLVEMENT & VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

leadership Seacoast, Member Board of Directors June, 2015 - PRESENT;

Treasurer September. 2Dl6 • PRESENT

Leadership Seacoast, Admissions Committee, 2014 - PRESENT

Leadership Seacoast. Program Graduate, 2013
iiH, Judge for various competitions, 2013 - 2015

Qarringtoo NH PTA 2011-2015

EDUCATION

Master of Busirsess Administration, Southern New Hampshire UiUversity

Graduate Certificate In Accounting, Southern New Hampshire University

Bachelor of Arts, Political Sciet^ce. University of New Hampshire
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Janice Williamson

HIC;ill.KJ)iTJ>Ol-QUALIFICA I IONS:
•  10 ycais Ol'cxpoicnce wiUi non-prpfll oi-piini/;iii(ji)S. Iltc lasi 25 in niniiagcmcm nncl pfo^uni

ndinlniilralion.

•  ll.A. in Sociology b:iokc(l by piolcssioiin! clevelopiorni courses in luiinnn sci vicos niul innnngcineni.
•  CrndtinJc of U.S'. Ami> C.VMnin:tiKl and Ccncml SjfilTCollege.
•  Slrongtiaek record in dcvclopuig and iinplcnrcniing iroining and siippoil pivgianb.
•  E.xpciicnccd in biirigei dcvclopmctu/adminisiration and gr«nt wiiiing!
•  Accnslomtd In rcpiesciiiing ngciicy/fjnriicipani iiHcrcsis ibioiigli public S|>ctilcmg aiid personal

nfprcscniaiion.
•  r.-xicnsive experience in developing Indivitlnal Service Plans vocaiioi^al cnrriculiuns.

Rxeciisivc c.xpciiencc in developing Individual Ediicniional Plans nnd altcmatc school curriciiluins.
Ilxlcnvtvc c.-iiJciicncc wiih adniinisirniive riiiKlioiis. including sti}x:i visinii of siaff. hiiing.
icninnaiioiiN. )(:t[rd«veltipnieiil and evaluation.
Skillfnl in developing nnd inaii;.ging contrACls.
Adept ill inicrpfciing nnd ensiniiig piograin compliance wiih >uic and fcdornl rcgulniions.

•  Adcpi :ii inwiprcling Sj)eci«l Educalioii icgiilations and mannging nhemaic <iK'cial educiilioii .schools
Siroog lc;nlcr>liip rjiniliiic): nnd jnuvcn vvilliiigiicss lo accept rcsponsibililics dcnionsimied ihroughoui
civilian and iniliiary caivci^.

•  I ligh level ot self iniiiatlvc and rcsmirccfulncss in achieving nmnagerinl obfeclives.
•  Adept m implementing and inniniammg the .Mental Illness Management Services (MIMS).

I-XPFRIENCEaNI) ACCOMIM.ISHMHNTS:

I^QX to Present Ni l NOK I H, INC.
Rc'giohnI'Dirrcim ^
Responsible Ibr.overseeing the opci aiions of all pi ograms iir my i cgion. Provide Icadei-Ship, supervision,
gtiidancc and clinical support. Responsible I'orcoininunicating all politics and pcoccdurcs, contiaci
negoilMlons nnd dcvclopincni, liscal planning iind on-call availability.

19^4 10 I998NFINORTII. INC.

Program IJirectoi. North Conniry Shelter. JcflVtson. Ni l
Kcspon.^Ihlc foi loial operations of co-ed progmin for 15 Nl! touii orilcrcd youth and o\'cr incniv live
hill-iime .o.nfl. Thit included piaccmcni. counseling, trcaimviii, special cdncution. and all HR fimctioiu.

1991 to 1994 NORTHERN Nil Dl:VELOPMENTAL SERVICES (i. MENTAL HEALTH. Wolfcboro
Nil

Rcsideiuial Ctjordnmun of lower Carroll Coumy located nt the Cairoll County Mental I lealdi Center,
Cooidinaic and Impicincnl all residential piogicnis for individuals vvilh a meninl illness. Responsible lor
;dl iSO/Enhn.ncc lainily care rcsidcniinl programs, (ksponsible for all compliance with stale and federal
rcgiilaii(ins>

,  198.1 10 IVy^COMVlUNirY SliRVICl-S COUNCIL 01-MERRI.MACK COUNIT, Concord, NH
I'rograin Adininisti aloi of the Trnumntic £3rain Injury Residential Program and the V«xailonal Ti dining
Program, both located ai IT.anklln Palis Fnmi • 1989 to May 1993

Direct till :i.sjM;cis of rchnbilitailve sciviccs for brain-injured adults ntid progressive vocmtonal
|):'ogi:unming foi the developmenially disabled. Oversee too program managers and .a staff of I R
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tisivk'iMi.il aihI vocitiionjil u:«iiK'JS providioy scivkcs Tor n cjiscloiid oi'JO. Ailniiiiisicr a ̂ M)0.0()»
iiiinuiil biiii^vl.

DcvcI»)|h:iI a prollinblc small business pioarmi us a voCattonal training tool I'nr ihc dcvVlopmcnialh
ilisnblvil.

l!:stablislu'c) hiy|>ly sncccsslul. iion-lradliional alicinnilv'c votalional proiirnmS for those in need ol'
inuie coiiipt'chcnsiVc Iheiapciilic inogroinnnnu,.
IManm-il/siipcrvised pregrmnming and siafTinvolvcd in de\*eto|iinc niul deli\Vring ihivo separate
vocational training programs for ihv dcvclopmcnlall)'disabled and mcniaHy ill thioiigboni conit'al
New I lainpshire.

DiireiJy invidvod in iiftcncy's receipt orJ20n.0l)0 "Mobility Grant" for ilcveloping the Till prbgrum.
r.stahlishcd yirong lelaiions with oilwt' T6I programs natimuridc.
hiliuiUiced the m cft s (list voeaitonal irainntg progruni ibr the dovelopineitlally dlsHbled by
cstahlivhing a day progrnm at n Incnl clinrt-h hall.
ronnnlated iniJ iinpleincnial hII program models and niaiiagcinem systems on vvlneli die rcmkldi
I'alls l-Urm program was develuped.
hnplcniented and cooidinnicd services with otitside iheraprsis (S|>ccch, occupationnl. pbssical atui
hchavioinl)
Isnpct vised all job coaches and trainers.

iVRd to 1483 LACONIA STA'lIi SCliOOl. AND TRAINING LT;NT£R. Laconia. NH
Uccrcationnl Therapist

TUAt.MING bXbtKHiNCi;

I47.S to SAU P4. New Mampshirc
I4?V Sitbstiitiic Teacher for Middle-Secondary School
1477 I.) IIOI.DROOK SCHOOL. IJolbrook. MA
|v>78 Snbsiiiuie Teacher Ibr tVliddlc-Sccondaiy School.

iMIM TAKY CXI'I-RII-NlII;

l';7R to LfNITKD S TATKS ARMY NATIONAL GUARD. Cimeurd. NH
I90H Demonsirnlcd strong leadership and m:iita(^onicm abilities rcstdiing in career progress rroin
the rank of Private to cuirrnt lank oi l.i. Colonel. Served as the Deputy Director of Personnel
overseeing n stall"of 20 at the ilarc level. One ofNeu Hanipshiie's Hist two female soldicis to
praduuie from Officei C!Hndidate School. 1988 recipient of the NH Army Commendation Meclal for
(.}nt>iunding Service. 1986 recipient of Ihc Army Commendation Medal lot Meritorious
AchicvciJicni. Ni l's 1985 Junior Oflicci of the Year. 1993 recipient of the Mcriioriutis Service Medal
for ILvcepiiunal Merilorious Scrsice.

F.Ol.'Cation: North Adams State College, Noitit Adants. MA. II.A. in .Sociology.

I'KOI-I-SSIONAI. DF.VF.I fJPML'NT:

lojj.j i„ j'rcscm L'oniplciioit of many staff rlc\ elopmcni uorkshops aitd seminars i claied to diivci eaic
management w iiliin lumtart sers'iecs.

144.S r.ieilit;nor/Tr!i"mor of Modeiatc Level Challencc Course.
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1989 10 199.1 U S, ARMY GFNERvVL COMMAND AND STAP!- COLLEGE. Lomlundcny, NH
urPicci s (mining in injiia^cincnt, ailininisdaiion. cuiinsclinjt sind c.svcuiivc ics))niHilnliirc.>.

I9S7 U.S. AKMV INSnrUTfl-OK PROFFSSIONAI, DliVl-I.OPMENl.NL'wporl News. VA
.AiL aiKcd MiiimjiomonL Icadcrsliii) oiid atliniiilsmtion.

1981 U.S. ARMY. Alx-riUvn, Ml) - Oniccr Rasic Course.
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Jennifer L. Altieri

Key Skills and Strengths
•Leadership - Adept at leadiug/'mauagiug cross-fiiuctioual progiams.
•System building and implementation
•Capable of leading high perfoiining teams imder tough deadlines, to meet expectations
of multiple stakeholders and other regulatory entities.
•Strong commimication skills (verbal and written).
•Problem solver - Creativity and forethought in solving complex project issues.

—  ̂

Objective

A motivated professional seeking a position that continues to enhance my skills and
challenge fuilher growth and development while providing leadership to plan, direct and
coordinate progiam expansion, program oversight and system implementation.

Education^

Masters of Science, Clinical Menfal Heahh Counseling with an addictions treatment
Certificate, Plymouth State University, Plymouth N.H. Accredited by the Counsel for
Accreditation of Counseling and Related Educational Progiams (CACREP) Graduation

date, December 1, of 2015. GPA 3.75
Bachelor of Science, Human Sei-vices/Counseling, Lyndon State College, 2002

Professional Experience

Care Management Entity Administrator, 1/2021-Current.
Responsible for overseeing the administration of all progiams of the Care Management
Entity (CME) that serves as a centralized accountability hub to coordinate all care for
youth with complex behavioral health challenges who are involved in multiple systems.
The CME Administrator provides leadership, supervision, guidance, and clinical suppoil
to progiams and staff. Responsible for commimicating all policies and procediues,
contract negotiations and development, fiscal planning and on-call availability.

Program Director, NFl North FASTFonvard and Tr-ECC State Wide 20J 7-Cnrrent.
Oversee program operations for two separate entities. One providing a Certified
Wraparoimd model to children, youth and families ages 5-21. The other entity providing
intensive transitional seivices to Residential and psychiatric hospitalized children, youth
and families.
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Program Director, NFI North FAST Forward and Community Based Ser\nces. State
Wide 20J7-2020. Oversee program operations for two separate entities. One providing a
Certified Wraparound mode! to children, youth and families ages 5-21. The other entity
provides intensive therapeutic services through clinicians and case managers through two
different New Hampshire certified programs serving 0-2! years of age. Individual service
option and Foster care as well as Home Based Therapeutic Services.
Program Director, NFI North transitional housing. Maple Lodge, Bethlehem New
Hampshire. And Array ofServices, Community Based, and January 2016-current.
Transferred to manage a residential program and pervasively mentally ill adults. Included
a staff team of 10 + and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic
operations, including intake, discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal
management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training, marketing,
licensing foster homes and supervision of staff.
Intern, NFI North Transitional Housing—Concord January 2015-December 2015
Currently completing a 600 hour internship and providing individual therapy to three
consumers at THS and co-facilitated many groups to include; morning community
meeting, art therapy, wellness recovery actin plan, fitness, substance abuse, seeking
safety, vocational group, and community livings skills support group and coping skills. 1
am currently facilitating Illness Management and Recovery group and Wellness
Recovery and Action Plan group. Competent in navigating the legal systems of
Consumers to include the NGRl status, incompetent to stand trial and sex offenders.
Knowledgeable around diagnosis of psychotic disorders.
Program Director, NFI North Array ofServices. Davenport School and ISO Services
2009-January 2016
Promoted to manage a residential program and school and community based services for
emotionally disturbed adolescents. Included a staff team of 25 + and an annual budget.
Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake, discharge,
counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff,
record keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster homes and supervision of staff.
Program Director, NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.-
2008-2009

Promoted to manage an intermediate level treatment facility for emotionally disturbed
adolescents. Included a staff of 15+. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic
operations, including intake, discharge, counseling, ser\'ice/discharge plans, fiscal
management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training and supervision of
staff.

Assistant Program Director; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Sei-vices,
Bethlehem, N.H-June 2004-2008

Responsible for assisting the Program Director in the overall functioning and operation of
the program, including administrative tasks, staff supervision, group/individual
counseling and crisis intervention.
Shift Supervisor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.
January 2002-June 2004.
Responsible for the supervision of assigned direct care staff and program consumers for
designated shift.
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Residential Counselor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Ser\>ices, Bethlehem,
N.H.- October 2000-January 2002.
Modeled appropriate behavior and social skills for adolescent girls in a residential setting.
Includes tasks such as monthly reports, writing daily progress notes and having
continuous contact with guardians.

Professional Development

NH Disaster Behavioral health Response Teams Basic Training
The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has
developed an organized team of behavioral health providers to respond to the
mental health needs of New Hampshire residents following disasters (e.g.,
bioterrorism, man-made or natural disasters)
PREPaRE: School Crisis Prevention and Intervention Training
The PREPaRE curriculum has been developed by the National Association of
School Psychologists (NASP) as part of NASP's decade-long leadership in
providing evidence-based resources and consultation related to school crisis
prevention and response. PREPaRE training is ideal for schools committed to
improving and strengthening their school safety and crisis management plans and
emergency response.

Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) Coordinator for NFI North.
Responsible for PREA implementation, policy making and training of staff.
Agency trainer utilizing NFI North's curriculum 1 co-train staff on professional
boundaries. Treatment Intervention, Family systems, and documentation skills.
Also, designed and presented at NFI North's annual conference on 'Girls finding
their voice' and 'Marketing your services.'
Illness, Management and Recovery Currently being trained and will obtain a 16
hour certification on this evidence based training.
Supported Employment 2 day certification
Medication training
Trauma Informed peer support training by SAMHSA one day training
developed for the National Center for Trauma Informed Care
CADY (communities for alcohol and drug free youth) active panel member for
Grafton county's restorative justice expansion program.2013-current
Grant Awarded through the Building Bridges Initiative and Transition To
Permanency Project. Focused around Family Driven and Youth Guided
Treatment.

Grant writing workshops, NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services and
The North Country consortium,
Suicide Prevention Conference, YSPA of NH.

Certified in Child and Adolescent Needs Scale (CANS)
Science Implementation
NH Wraparound
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Membership/Affiliation
Member of American Counseling Association (ACA)
Certified as a Human Services- Board Certified Practitioner (HS-BCP) by the
Center of Credentialing and Education and the National Organization of Human
Services.

Inducted into Plymouth State University's Upsilon Pi, which is a chapter of Chi
Sigma Iota (CSI), which is an international counseling honor society.
Board Panel Member with lOD/NAMI to approve Certifications for all NH
Wrap Coordinators.

Awards/Recognition
Scholarship Awarded through National Board for Certified Counselors to further
my education at Plymouth State University. Scholarship awarded was $5,000.00.
Nominated and selected as one of the 40 under forty recipients for New
Hampshire (2014).
Dr. Yitzhak Bakal Essence of Leadership award (2010)
Courage to Grow Award (2001)
Shining Star (2014).
Spirit of community award NFI/NAFI (2019)
Recognition for volunteering time to missions trips to Nicaragua (2006) and
Africa (2008.)

References

Noel Chipman, LICSW (Internship site supervisor) I-603-229-3915
Charlene Nickerson. MSW (Social worker at the Federal Prison in Berlin) 1-603-
723-2509

Lora Abraham. LCSW, MBA (Director 11—Community health behavioral
services) 1-315-798-8869 x23l
Tara MacKillop. MS (Human Resources Consulting, inc) 1-603-496-6332
Dr. Steven FIvnn. (Advisor at Plymouth State University) 1-603-535-3221
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Kathleen M Abate

Objective To leverage my experience in systems transformation leadership to develop the
necessary strategies and wiW among partners in communit>' settings so that all NH
families and youth are safe, well supported, and on the path to success.

Skills Understanding of System of Care Values and Principles and of
strategics for opcrationalizing such \vithin public systems
Understanding of the complex webs of various partners, projects, and
initiatives tliat comprise state and local level service efforts
Extensive presentation, training, program and tool development, and
facilitation ex'perience
Excellent writing skills and extensive grant and issue brief writing
experience
Long standing relationships with national experts and leaders in the
field of children's and family beha\ioral health
Ability to identify- and/or develop tools to enliance strategic plaiming
and collaboration

Ability to articulate tlie strengths of youth and family leaders while
maintaining solid relationships across stakeholder groups
Experience developing policies related to systems transformation
effoiis

Ability to lead a diverse group into productive dialogue, consensus,
and action

Ability to navigate rapidly changing and often challenging flscal,
administrative, and political environments
Leadership experience in development of tools and frameworks for
partner agencies, family, and youth engagement and leadership within
Multi-Tiered Systems of Support as well as Systems of Care.

Education B.A., Magna Cum Laude, University of New Hampshire, 1995
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7/2021 to present: Assistant Administrator for the Care Management
Entity at NFI North, 40 Park Ln Contoocook NH

Oversee operations of the CME, with the Administrator of the CME, and ensure

Exoerience quality services are provided to youth and families in both the Wraparound and TrECC
programs, as well as work to develop new programs under the CME umbrella. Work
with implementation partners and the Bureau of Children's Behavioral Health to
ensure administrative and programmatic excellence. Represent NFI North at state
level planning and policy tables and identify system gaps and barriers the CME can
assist to address. Ensure families and youth have a voice in all processes. Support
Program Directors and Supervisors in all areas of staff supervision and development
and cultivate a culture of mutual respect and support internally and wth partners in
the work..

9/2018 to present: Assistant Program Director, FAST Forward, NFI North,
40 Park Ln Contoocook NH

Oversee development of NH's CME services related to Wraparound,
Transitional Enhanced Care Coordination, and In- Home Supports. Manage the
Interim Supports List for FAST Foru'ard. SuperNnse program staff and partner with
coaching staff from the UNH Institute on Disability to ensure administrative and
practice fidelity and excellence. Work in cross stakeholder teams to further develop
and refine practice, evaluation, and training efforts related to NH's System of Care
development. Assist in development of CME practices for monitoring and oversight
functions regarding transition of youth from Residential and Psychiatric Hospital
settings. Represent NFI North on various long term and ad hoc workgroups and
committees.

10/2016 to 9/2018: Clinical Care Manager/ FAST Forward Program, NFI
North, 40 Park Lane, Contoocook, NH.

Proridcd facilitation of eridence-based NH Wraparound Planning Process as
developed and piloted under NH's Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative
Workforce Development Network. Assist families to drive their own cross environment
Plan of Care from a strengths-based perspective. Assist to coordinate front loaded
clinical and practical supports to support children, youth, and families to access the
mix of public and private supports that enhance their abilit>' to remain in their homes,
schools and communities.

7/2000-10/2016: Executive Director, Granite State Federation of Families
for Children's Mental Health, Manchester, NH.

Responsible for all the day-to-day business functions of a children's mental
health support, advocacy, and training non-profit organization. Responsible to proride
support, training, and hosting functions to YouthMOVE NH. Pro\ide state level family
leadership to all Children's Beharioral Health Collaborative (NH CBHC) umbrella
initiatives. Was nominated as the first Chair of the CBHC, a cross stakeholder
collaborative that has brought multiple federal grants into NH by building a
comprehensive integrated plan for children's behavioral health and t)nng the efforts of
all partners to that plan. Proride leadership to all related projects. Appointments
included: Steering Committee, CBHC. Co-Leader; Wraparound NH Curriculum and
Training Development Workgroup; Co-Leader Youth Peer Support Development;

1 •
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Member, Safe Schools Healthy Students and Project AWARE State Management
Team; Member, Family Engagement and Leadership Assessment and Mapping
Project; Member, I9i5i Medicaid State Plan Amendment Writing Group; Member,
Behavioral Health Equit>' Task Force; Member, Multi-Tiered Systems of Support
Statewide Implementation Team; Member, NH CBHC Workforce Development
Network Leadership Team; Member, RENEW Leadership team; Member, NH School
Behavioral Health Community of Practice; Member, State Advisory for State Youth
Treatment Planning initiative

11/1999-7/2000: Service Broker, Moore Center Services, Manchester, NH
Asked to create a program vvithin which consumers and families would gain

greater fiscal and planning control over the ways in which their supports were
identified and delivered. Developed fiscal intermediary options, individualized person
specific and portable budgets, facilitated planning, and wTOte agency protocol,
procedures and policies which would facilitate greater choice and control for people
^vith intellectual and developmental disabilities while ensuring risk and liability for the
sendee prorider were minimized.

11/1995-11/1999: Service Coordinator MIMs Program Coordinator,
Moore Center Services, Manchester, NH

Provided service planning and advocacy supports to adults diagnosed with
complex and multiple challenges, including developmental disabilities, traumatic
brain injur>', and severe and chronic mental illness. Was responsible for initiating and
designing the first fully developed inter-agency Mental Illness Management Services
program in the state, whereby appropriate symptom management services were made
available to adults and children with multiple and complex dd/mh/sud challenges.
Headed several special projects and led multiple committees related to treatment and
service issues and systems change. Served as a mentor and trainer to newer staff to the
agency.

6/1991-11/1995: Independent Living Case Manager, Moore Center
Services, Manchester, NH

Prorided both direct and indirect supports and services to adults with dual
diagnoses and their families in the Greater Manchester area. Position required
detailed knowledge of the local, state, and federal benefits sj'stems, including
Medicaid, Medicare, Social Security and Section 8 Housing. Assisted with teaching
effective self-advocacy as well as sWlls of daily liring and of social interactions.

2 •
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Leadership and
Publications

Malloy, JoAnne, Drake, Jonathon, Cormier, Gail and Abate, Kathleen. 'The RENEW
Model of Futures Planning, Resource Development, and School-to-Career Experiences
for Youth with Emotional and Behavioral Disorders." D-ansition of Secondary
Students with Emotional or Behavioral Disorders: Current Approachesfor Positive
Outcomes. By Douglas Cheney. Champaign, IL: Research, 2010. N. pag. Print.

Co-author, NH Children's Behavioral Health Core Competencies

First Chair, New Hampshire Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative, 2014-2015
vnw.nhavouth.org

Univcrsit>'of Maiyland, Dept. of Psychiatiy, Center for School Mental Health, National
Evaluation Advisoiy Member, Januaiy 2016 to 2018

Member, Board of Directors, On the Road to Wellness Adult Education and Mental
Wellness Center, Manchester and Deny NH, August 2016 to present

Multiple National Presentations related to Family and Youth Dnven Wraparound,
Core Competencies Development, Workforce Development, Systems of Care, 2001-
Present

References
Kim Firth, Program Director, Endowment for Health, 603-228-2448 x 316,
kFnthff'cncloumcntforhcalth.ori:

Dr. JoAnne Malloy, PhD, Clinical Assistant Professor and RENEW Project Director,
University of New Hampshire Institute on Disability; Chair, NH Children's Behavioral
Health Collaborative Workforce Development Network
ioannne.mallovfflunh.edu 603-228-2084

Jennifer Altieri, Program Director NFI North FAST Forward program,
iennileraltieriffl'nafi com

Amy Parece-Grogan, Cultural and Linguistic Competence Coordinator, NH DHHS
Office of Minority Health and Refugee Affairs, (603) 271-3986
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Kaitlyn Deveau

Skills

I am reliable; dedicated, and deeply passionate about the youth and families we serve. 1 have

held several positions within NFI, which include several years of supervisory experience. I am

strengths-based in my approach with all people, and believe in the importance of collaborating

and relationship building. I have strong writing skills, adhere to deadlines, am organized and

detail-oriented.

Experience

07/2021 -Present

NFI North, FAST Forward- Program Director

•  Overseeing administrative tasks to include: billing, hiring, scheduling, training, payroll,

contracted services.

•  Providing direct supervision to care coordinators and supervisors.

•  Collaboration among System of Care partners.

•  Program Development to include building of protocols and structures.

•  Supporting youth and families in crisis and safety planning, as well as providing

intermittent care coordination.

•  CANS trainer

08/2020- 07/2021

NFI North, FAST Forward - Care Coordinator (Certified)

•  Coordinating care for youth and families to create and connect to sustainable community

supports.

•  Graphic facilitation

•  Creating Plans of Care for families and documenting meeting notes, contact notes, and

incident reports.

•  Collaborating with systems and programs throughout the state to promote best

outcomes for youth and families.

•  Assisting youth and families in creating and utilizing safety plans,

•  Ensuring and empowering youth and families voices and choices.

•  Completed all requirements including several trainings for certification.
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•  CANS Certification

07/2017- 08/2020

NFI North, Davenport ■ Assistant Program Director

•  Overseeing direct care staff and shift supervisors, providing bi-weekly supervision to shift

supervisors and administrative assistant

Oversee petty cash and reconcile weekly

Scheduling

Oversee maintenance and safety of grounds

Milieu management

Creating and implementing protocols in order to improve consistencies among the staff

team

•  Create and facilitate curriculums for therapeutic groups with guidance from clinical

coordinator.

08/2017- 07/01/2019

NFI North, Davenport - Shift Supervisor

•  Overseeing and providing regular supervision to Direct Care Staff

•  Provide support and counseling for clients

•  Organizing events such as the "Spring Fling"

•  Strong understanding of milieu management and keeping the grounds to acceptable

standards

•  Strong documentation skills and commitment to completing tasks by deadlines

01/2017 - 08/2017

NFI North, Davenport - Direct Care Counselor

•  Provide support and counselling for clients

•  Complete documentation to satisfactory levels by deadlines

•  Attended multiple core trainings and established a foundation for understanding

normative culture.

•  Run and lead productive groups

11/2016- 01/2017

The Healthy Rhino, Littleton NH - Cashier/Customer Service

•  Cashier

•  Customer Service

•  Organization and tracking of inventory

06/2014 - 09/2016

Littleton Regional Healthcare, Littleton NH - Certified Medical Assistant
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•  Float position with experience in Urology, Pulmonology, Worhen's Health, Primary Care,

Pediatrics, Orthopaedics and Psychiatry.

•  Allergy Testing and administering immunotherapy injections

•  Clerical/Administrative assistance

Education

08/2019 -04/2022

Southern New Hampshire University, New Hampshire - M.S. Psychology ++ Child and

developmental Psychology

12/2016 - 06/29/2019

Granite State College, New Hampshire - B.S. Psychology

01/2012 - 06/2014

White Mountains Community College, New Hampshire - AS. Medical Assisting

Professional Trainings

2018- TBRI 3 out of 4 modules completed

2020- WRAP Training

2019- CPR/Flrst Aid Certification

2021- Cultural and Linguistic Competency

2021- Graphic Facilitation with Patty Cotton

2018- NFI Leadership Training

2021- Youth Mental Health First Aid

2020- CANS

2021 - Families and Addiction

2021 - CANS Train the Trainer

Awards

•  2018-NFI North Shining Star Award

•  2016- Nominated LRH Employee of the Year

References

References available upon request
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salar>' % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Paul Dann Executive Director $217,804 0 0

Luke Reynard Chief Operating Officer $146,000 0 0

Kristi Vazifdar Chief Financial Officer $126,000 0 0

Jan Williamson Regional Director $135,000 15% $ 20,050

Jennifer Altieri CME Administrator $100,000 100% $100,000

Kathleen Abate Asst. CME Administrator $85,000 100% $ 84,000

Kaitlyn Deveau Program Director - Fast Forward $ 81,400 100% $81,400
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/m/O/V FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27I-9544 I-SOO-8S2-3345 Ext. 9544

Fhx: 603-271-4332 TOD Access: I-800-735-2964 wwsv.dhhs.nh.gov

April 26, 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (Vendor
#177575-8001), Contoocook, NH, for the provision of Care Management Entity services for the
FAST Forward program, by exercising a contract renewal option, increasing the price limitation
by $2,300,000 from $2,452,160 to 4,752,160 and by extending the completion date from June 30,
2021 to June 30, 2023 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017, item
#398. It was subsequently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 20. 2018.
item #20. and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 10, 2020,
item #11.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-921010-i2053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM
OF CARE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 072-509073
Grants-

Federal
92102100 $6,000 $0 $6,000

2018 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92102053 $91,160 $0 $91,160

2019 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

,92102053 $420,000 $0 $420,000

2020 1.02-500731

.Contracts for
Program
Services

92102053 $785,000 $0 $785,000

The Dcporlmcnt o( Hcollh and Human Scruices' Mii-iion is lo join comnuinilies and families

in providing opporlunilics (or citizens to achiciK health and independence.
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2021 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92102053 $1,150,000 $0 $1,150,000

2022 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92102053 $0 $1,150,000 $1,150,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Sen/ices

92102053 $0 $1,150,000 $1,150,000

Total $2,452,160 $2,300,000 $4,752,160

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because Amendment #2 of this contract was approved as
sole source and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labeled as sole source.
The Contractor is uniquely qualified to provide ttiese services as Senate Bill 14, of the 2019
Regular Legislation Session, amended RSA 135:F to require a Care Management Entity to
provide this oversight for the State, and NFi North is one of two Care Management Entities In the
State.

The purpose of this request is to continue to support the provision of Care Management
Entity services for the FAST Forward program, which Include, but are not limited to:

Provision of Individual Service Options (ISO) in-home services.

Wraparound Coordination.

Wraparound Coordinator training and coaching.

Wraparound team meeting attendance.

Provision of Youth peer support.

Provision of Family Peer Support.

Oetermlnation of needed customizable goods and services for the children/ybuth
receiving services and their families.

Provision of stipends for customizable goods and services, and other norh
Medicaid billabte services.

Qualifying children and youth are Medicaid eligible, aged five (5) through twenty-one (21),
experiencing difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of SED, and are at risk of multi-
agency involvement. Through FAST Forward, these children, youth, and their families can be
served in their , home communities, while living in their natural homes and attending their
community's school program. Outcomes of a high fKielity Wraparound program include, but are
not limited to: Increased positive social, academic, and behavioral outcomes and community
connectedness for children, youth, and families; decreased out of home, school, and community
placements (and duration of such); Increased caregiver capacity/decreased careglver strain; and
access to programs and supports that are uniquely tailored to each child and family's culture,
strengths, and goals. This Is a unique program in New Hampshire to service the described
population In this manner.
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Qualifying children and youth are those who are eligible for Medicaid aged five (5) through
twenty-one (21), experiencing difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of serious emotional
disturbances; and at risk of multi-agency involvement. Approximately G25 individuals and
approximately 1,100 family members will be served from July 1. 2021 to June 30, 2023.

The utilization of high fidelity Wraparound with an SED population has demonstrated a
reduction in the repeat use and duration of stays for children and youth at New Hampshire
Hospital. Additionally, this program embodies the values and principles of a System of Care within
the Department, which is r^uired to be shown under RSA 135:F. System of Care Law.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures;

•  95% of children, youth and young adults as well as their families receive the Child and
Adolescent Needs and Strer^hs (CANS) assessment tool which is used with psychiatric
oversight and FAST Forward engagements.

•  80% of children, youth and young adults as well as their families receive the Youth
Progress Scale (VPS) and Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS) assessment tools.

•  100% of children, youth and young adults as well as their families receive completed FAST
Forward plans of care.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of the contract, the parties have the option to extend the
agreement for up to three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Govemor and Council approval. The Department
is exercising its option to renew services for two (2) of the two (3) years available.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, families with children and
youth who have serious emotional disturbances may have fewer services available to them in
their communities to meet the challenges that are presented by mental illness. Further, the
Department may be out of compliance with RSA 135:F.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted,

Lor) A. Shibinette
Commissioner

/
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.  State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward contract is by and between
the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
NFI North, lnc.-("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21. 2017 (Item # 39B). as amended on September 20, 2018, (Item #20). and as amended on June
10. 2020. (Hem #11), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the'Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2023

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,752,160

3. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3,
Subsection 3.4, to read:

3.4. Lastly, the Contractor shall bill this Agreement, for services provided to individuals that are
not billable to other insurance or payors, or Medicaid as follows:

3.4.1. The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the Department in accordance
with Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2.

3.4.2. The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the Department for actual
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement in accordance with the
approved line items as specified in the Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 SFY 2022 Budget,
and Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3 SFY 2023 Budget, shall be on a cost reirribursement
basis.

3.4.3. Reimbursement for costs billed to the Department shall be made monthly.

4. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 SFY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit 8:7 Amendment #3 SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

RFP-2018-D8H-02-CAREM-01-A03

A-S-1.0

NFI North, Inc.

Page 1 of 3

Contractor Initials,

Date
5/11/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written l>elow.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/11/2021

Date

C—DocvSktn'dbr;
-EO«00«eO«C9)442...

jq^;;;;r-Kat3TTox-

Title: Director

5/11/2021

Date

NFI North, Inc.
by:by:

I pMfi i- PU), Piio^dr if Nfl NayiL
>  BM2B90M6a*406...

Name: Paul l. oann, Pho. Executive Director of nfi North

Executive Director

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-01 -AOS

A-S-1.0

NFI North. Inc.

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

D^cuSkjfttd by;

5/12/2021 I
^  0JCA«»7EJJC4A£...

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting) ,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM.01-A03 NFI North. Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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Menegtmeni Eraty Strvtea ier FAST Forwan) EjdVbil B-4 AmtndmtfU O

SFY20Z2 Budget

N«w Hampshir* Department of Keatth and Human Servtces

StdderfPregram Ntma: NFT Inc.

B*^e«t Request for: Ctre H»nw«»««nt Entity Servtces for FAST Forward

Budget Pertod: SFY fT/i/wti-trtOffom

total Program Cost Contractor Share 1 Match Funded by DHHS contract share 1

Line Item
Olrtict

Incremental

Indirect '

Fixed

ToUl Direct

iKremenial

Indirect

Fixed

Total Direct

Incremental

Indirect

Fixed

Total

1. Total Safsryweoes i  3.543.S70XD \ 353X97.00 i^.427.06 i 3X23.570.00 352X57.00 i 6876.427X0 i 20X0600 S  20.000.00
7. Emtdaim Oeneta S  687.142.30 86214X3 i 970.356.53 882.143.30 i 68214.23 i 970X5653
1 Corwaam S i i i i .

4. Eojipmera: s s i 5 I

Rental %  4a.600.00 i 4.460.00 s 40.060.00 5 44.600.00 4.460.00 i 49.ocaco
Reoeir and Uairaenance s i • t 5 .

PtirgieseOeneUatlur* i  82X00.00 s 6200.00 i 66200.00 i 62,000.00 6200.00 S 6620600 1 J

S. SuDodes; s s s .  . 5 5 1

tducaeortal i  45X00.00 i 4.550.00 i 50.050.00 i 45.500.00 i 4X50.00 i 50.060.00
Lab i 5 i i
Pnarmacv s i 5 5 S
nedcai $ t i s

S  CIXOO.OO 5 6.10600 i 67.100.00 s 61.000.00 t 6100.00 i 67.10600
B. Travri S  S2l.000.00 s 52.l0i.00 5 573.101X0 s 501.000.00 i 56101.00 i 551.101.00 5 20X00X0 $  3.000.00 i  23.000.00
7. Oeoeancv $  138.956.00 s 13.897.60 i 153.953.60 5 136866.00 5 12X87.60 s 138.453.60 T 14.09600 S  1.410.00 S  15X00.00

s i $ 5 J
Ttlethene I  04X00.00 i 6.450.00 s 92.950.00 S 64.500.00 i 6450.00 S 93.950.00

$  2XOO.CO 5 200.00 s 2200.00 5 2X00.00 i 200.00 5 2200.00
Siubscrlpdoro J i i i
Auda and Legal $ i i i
lrtsurar«e t  32X02.00 5 328020 5 36082.20 33X03.00 i 32I)0.M s 36.08220 1

Beard &(Dens«3 5 $ s
9. Software $  6000.00 S aoo.00 6X00.00 $ 8X00.00 i 800.00 5 8.aoo.oo J  •

S  I6000.00 5 i.aoo.00 i 19X00.00 16000.00 } 1.600.00 S i9.aoo.oo J

It. Stad Educaton and Trairina %  1.279.200-00 5 127,920.00 S 1.407.120.00 5 I.104.200.0D i 110.420.00 I 1214.626CO i 17SXOO.OO $  17.MM
i2. Subeorxreeu/Aoreemerni %  6.C72.SI4.00 5 867251.40 5 9.533.765.40 5 6I72.S14.C0 i 667251.40 s 9.039.7CS.40 i 500.C0600
13. Udier (soecVKdeiais cnandsiDrrt:

• 5 i i .

Flea haids. other ctent cjocr«« {  490500.00 5 49.050.00 5 S39.550.00 i 490.500.00 i 49.OSO.0O s 539.550.00
BCetq lor LMnevved 1  400.000.00 S i 400.000.00 5 5 s i 400.00600

s S - J I S I -

t  1(087.284.30 s lX67.23t.43 t 17X7651673 I i I.M.Ui.41 5 (.734.51673T 1.139.090.04 T  BTOT 9 1.156000X0

NFlieortMne.
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OocuSign Envelope ID: 64DaAD(»-A7FCME36-9d52-6193BAA688FC

C«re MantocfKcni Endy S«ririce> <or FAST Fonrwd ExNWl B-7 Afnwndmcnt n

Snr 2033 Bude«1

New Hampshire Oepartmera of Haailh and Human Services

BMe«rfPrO0rafn WFl Horth. ktc.

Budgtt tar. Cws Mw«>etfT>em EmUv tor FAST Ftwwwd

B»do«tP«rto4; SFY »33ITiimn-«nW30231

Total Program Cost Contractor Shira f Match • Funded by 6Hkii contract 4hare
Dlroct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total

Line Item Incremental Fixed incremental Fixed Incremental Fixed

1, Tool Satwywaw S  3.6»<.Sl3.a] i 366.951.28 \ 4.O51.464.06 X664X1X80 i 366.951.28 i 4X31.464.06 i S 8  20.000.00

\  9t7.<27.99 i 91.742.80 i 1.009.170.79 i 917.427.99 I 91.74X80 5 1.009.17X79

i 5 i .  - t 5

4. Eoutamen: 5 . s i - $ $

I  4iju>o.m 6 4.460.00 5 49.060.00 i 44X00.00 5 4.460.00 S 49.060.00

Reoak and lnUiitenaneo i . i 5 - $ J

PwchesNOeoreOsdon i  62.000.00 s 6200.00 5 56200.00 s 62X00.00 5 6200.00 i 66200.00

S. SuceSes; 5 i t - 5

S  45.SOO.0O i *M6M t 50.050.00 4&X6O.0O { 4.550.00 1 50.050.00^

Lab $ i i i

Pftarmacv 5 i i 5 5

ModiC^ 5 i - $ i

Otfco %  61.000.00 t 6.100.00 { 67.100.00 61.000.00 i 6.I00.0O 5 67.l00.00

S  521.000.00 i 52.101.00 i 57X101.00 5 501X00.00 S0.l01.00 i 551.101X0 i 20.000.00 S  2X00.00 {  22X00.00

7. Oect«aner $  139.956.00 1X997.60 5 153.95X60 S 125X66.00 12X87.60 5 138.45X60 i 14.090.00 5  1.4I0.C0 S  15X00.00

s i $ i

Tdeeiwe $  84JOO.OO i X4SO.OO i 92.950.00 5 64.500.00 i 8.4SO.OO S 92X50.00

S  2000.00 5 200.00 22CO.OO 5 2X00.00 i 200.00 i 2200.00

Sxbtoiniinne S - • t 5

Audi and LaoN { I - 1 -
&

S  32002.00 328020 i 36.06220 S 32X02.00 3280.20 5 36.062.20

Boart Exoemes s 5 • 5 S

$  LOOO.OO i- 866il6 i 6.800.00 5 8.000.00 800.00 S 6.800.00

10. MarKedno/ConvnuntaaSora S  18.000.00 i 1.800.00 s 19.800.00 i I8.C00X0 1.80X00 i 19.800.00

n. ScsS Educadon and TraHna ' S  1.279.200.00 127.920.00 s 1.407.120X0 I.KM,200.00 i 110.420.00 5 1.214.620.00 i 175.000 00 $  17.500.00 S  192X00.00

12. Subedneieo/Aereemeno $  8.672.514.00 867.251.40 s 9.539.765.40 S 6.172.514.0O 5 847251.40 5 9.039.765.40 5 SOO.OOO.OO i  sooxoo.oo

13. Udto (toacAcoetata mandatsrv): i i t S

i  490500.00 i 49.060.00 i 539.550X0 49O.£Oa.0O i 49X50.00 i 539.550.00

1

1

1

S  400.00DXO i i 400.000.00 5 i s 400X00.00 $  400X00.00

J J - I 5 i 1 5

TOTAL S  16.44X512.79 1>04,85428 i 1X046.3(7X7 I . {&U4.iil74 s 1X918.347.87 I 5  20.910.08 } 1.150.000X0

NFI Noth. Inc.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISIOI^ FOR BEHA VlORAl HEALTH

129 PLeASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603.27U9544 1400<892-334S EsL 9544

Fai;003-27|-4333 TDOAcccii: 1-80O-735-2964 www.dhhi.Qb.gov

May 15, 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sunonu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 0.3301

reduested action

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Senrjces. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NFI. North, inc. (Vendor
#177575-B001). PO Box 417. 40 ParR Lane. ContoocooK. NH 03229 for the provision of Care
Management Entity services for the FAST Forward program, by increasing the price limitation by
$1,515,000 from $937,160 to $2,452,160 and by extending the completion date from June 30.
2020 to June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. The
original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21,2017. item #39B and most
re^ntly amended with Gbvemor and Council approval on September 20,2018. item #20.100%
General Funds.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021. with
the authority to 'adjust budget line rtems virithin the price limitation .through the Budget Office, if
needed and. justified.

05-95-92-921010-2053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUVAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILORENS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM
OF CARE

State

Fiscal

. Yoof

Class/

Account ■ .
Cl&sc Title

Job

Number

Current

- Budget

Incroasod

.  (Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2016 . 072-509073 Grants-Federal 92102100 ■  $6,000 ■  $0 $6,000

. 2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $91,160 50 $91,160

,2019 102-500731. ' Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $420,000 SO '  $420,000

2020 102-500,731 ■ Contacts fpf Program Services 92102053 $420,000 $365,000 $785,000

■ 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 SO $1,150,000 $1,150,000

Tola! $937,160 $1,515,000 $2,452,160



His Excellency; Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is adding new scope requirements
to.the.contract for oversight of psychiatric care and residential treatment. Further, this action adds
(thr (.«) (years of additional renevral options to the contract The Contractor is uniquely qualihed to
provide these services as Senate Bill 14. of the 2019 Regular Legislation Session, amended RSA
135:F to.require a Care Management Entity to provide this oversight for the State, and NFI North
is the only Care Management Entity in the State. NFI North has provided exemplary service
throughout this contract and beyond. The values and principles that NFI North operates under
are In direct alignment with t)^ values and principles outlined irii the requirementa for the
Department under RSA 135:F. As previously stated, the original contract was approved by
Governor and Council on'June 21, 2017. item #39B. it was then subsequently arhended with
Governor and Council approval on Septemt)er 20, 2018, item #20.

The purpose of this amendment Is to expand the existing scope of services to Include
enrollment and payment for non-Medicaid children arid youth in the FAST Forward program,
oversight of children ar^ youth in a psychiatric hospital, increased enrollment for tfte FAST
Forward program and indusion of an increased budget to accommodate the Increased
erirollment, and acceptance of referrals for children, youth and families who are Involved with the
Division of Children. Youth and Families and have an open couri case.

Despite the best Intiantions and hard work of families and providers, services are often
fragmented and difficult to navigate. New Hampshire is making great progress In addressing
these challenges using the New Hampshire Wraparound program called FAST Forward. The
FAST Forward program is designed to serve youth with serious emotional disturbances and their
families, whose heeds are not met by traditiof;ial service streams and programs. This is done by
utilizing a.high fidelity wraparound approach that is a definable, Individualized, and strengths-
based planning process that incorporates a child iahd family, team, and results in a unique set of
services and supports for the child or youth and their family. The treatment plan is dosely

. monitored to achieve a positive set of outcomes.

Qualifying children and youth are those who are. eligible for Medicaid aged five (5) through-
twenty-one (2i), experiencing difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of serious emotional
disturbances, and • at risk of multi-agency Involvement. Approximately 325 individuals and
approximately 1100 more family members will be served from July 1, 2020 to June 30. 2021.

Many New Hampshire children, youth, and their families experience' difficulties In day-to-
day life, due to serious emotional disturbances and face challenges finding the appropriate
supports when needed. Children and youth era often placed out of the home in residential
treatment facilities, psychiatric hospitals, juvenil.e justice facilities, or daytime programs.' Many, of
these placements take the children and youth out of their local schools and communities.

•The. Department will monitor contracted services-using the. following performance
measures:

•  • The Contractor must ensure that the ChikJ and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS)
assessment tool is used with psychiatric oversight and FAST Forward eng^ements wth
95% of engaged childfer), youth and young adults as well as their families. •

•  The Contractor must ensure that the Youlh Progress Scale (YPS) and Team Meeting
Rating Scale (TMRS) assessment tools are utilized with 80% of engaged

•  children/youth/young adults and their families. •' .
. • The Contractor must ensure that FAST Forward plans of care are completed v^h 100%

of engaged children, youth and young adults as well as their families.
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As referenced In Exhibit C>1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. One (1) year of
renewal was utilized in Amendment ffl of the contract. The Department is exercising its option to
renew sen/ices for one (1) of the one (1) year available. The Department is also adding an
additional three (3) years of renewal through this Amendment #2.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families with-
chlldren and youth who have serious emotional disturbances may have fewer services available
to them In their communities to meet the challer^ges that are presented by mental illness. Further.
DHHS may be out of compliance with.RSA 135:F.

- Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully 8ubmitt<

ori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner

77u Peporim^l c/Heollh and Numo^ Struiett' MUsien is to join eonimunilia and /onidet.
in providini opportuniUet for cirisenfl to ocAiVm htoflh ond indtptndtnct.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

'  27 Haren Dr.. Concord. NH 03301

Fax: 603.271.1516 TOD Access: 1.800.735.2964 ,

wwvv.nh.gov/doil

Denis Coulet

Commissioner

May 19. 2020

Ldri A. Shibinenc, Commissioner
Department of Health and Hunian Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibincttc:

. This leiler represcnls formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to amend a contract with NFl North, Inc. of Conioocook, NH as
described below and referenced as DolT No! 2018.0'69B.

The purpose of this amendment is to expand the existing scope of services to Include enrollment
and payment for non.Medicoid children and youth in the FAST Forward program, oversight of
children ttnd youth In a psychiatric hospital, increased enrollment for the FAST Forward program
and inclusion of an increased budget to accommodate the increased enrollment, and acccptahcc of
referrals foi* children, youth and families who are involved with ilic Division of Children, Youth
and Families and have an open court case.

This amendment incrcasesthc price limitation by SI,515,000 from $937,160 to S2,452,I60 and
e.xtends the completion date from June 30,2020 to June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and
Council approval.

A copy, of this letter should .accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to thc Govcmbr and Executive Council for approval.

\

Sincerely',

Denis Goulct.

DG/ik

DolT #2018-0696

cc: Michael Williams, IT.Manager, DolT

"innovative Technologies Todoy for New Hampshire's 7"omorrow"
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPAJITMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

lJ9PLEASAfrrSTR£ET. CONCORD. NH 03301

<03.271-9544 U0M52.334SE>l9S44

.Fax;<OM7M}32 TOD Ac<tu: |.«00-735.2964
w-ww.dhhs.n7i.gev

August 15, 2016

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State Hoiise /
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing agreement with NFI North. Inc..Vendor #17757&-
8001, PO Box 4.17, 40 Park Lane. Contoocook. NH 03229, for the provj^ion of Care Management
Entity services for the FAST Forward program'by increasing the. price limitation by'$742,840. from
'$194,320 to an amount not to exceed $93,7.160, and iextending the contract completion date from'June
30, 2019 to June 30. 2020, effective upon the date of Governor end Council approval The original

• contract was approNed by Governor and Coundlon June 21, 2017 (Item #398) 100% General Funds

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year (SFV) 2018 and SFY 2019, and are anticipated to be
available in SFV 2020 upon the availabilty.and continued appropriation of funds In the future operating
budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances .between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office
without approval from Governor and Eiecutive Coundl, if needed and justified.

06-95-92-9210102053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALtH AND HUfWAN SVS,
HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEAL1H DIV, BUR FOR CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH. SYSTEM OF CARE

SFY Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number-

Current

Amount

.  Increase

Amount

Total

Amount

2016 072-509073 Grants-Federal 92102100 S6.000 $0 ' $6,000 ■

2018 ■  102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
92102053 ■  $91,160 ■ $0 ■ $9.1,160

2019 102-500731 ■
Contracts for Program

Sen^ices
92102053 $97,160 ■ $322,640 $420,000

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
92102053 $0 $420,000 $420,000

Total $194,320 $742,840. $937,160
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment is to incorporate Family Peer Support and Evaluation of the
FAST Forward Program into this contract and to remove those items from a separate contract, as
required by HB 517. H6 517 required'the Department to include all wraparound services associated
with the FAST Forward program Into one contract that are not currently in the Medicaid State Plan
amendment. The Medicaid State Plan amendment implements the optional 1915<i) State Plan Home
and Community-Based Services (HOBS) benefit for disabled individuals and requires the following
changes:

•  Reduce the funding necessary for the FAST Forward services through this contract by
allowing the new Medicaid Benefit .to cover some costs. ■ ,

•  Incorporate the scope.of service from the Family Peer Support contract into this contract
to ensure the contractor is operating as a full Care Management Entity (CME) and bills
the new Medicaid Benefit for thai service.

•  ' Incorporate the funds for non-Medicaid billable costs associated with, the Family Peer'
'  Support and Family. Leadership scope of service into this contract.

•  Extend this contract for a year.

Funds in this agreement are used for the provision of CME services for the FAST Forward
prograrh, which include, but are not limited to:

•. Provision of Individual'.Service Options (ISO) in-home services.

•  Wraparound Coordination. . ' • • -'V

•  . Wraparound Coordinator training and coaching.

•  , Wraparound team meeting attendance.

•  Provislor) of Youth peer support.

•  Provision of Family Peer Support.

•  •• Oetermination of needed customizable goods and services for the children/youth
receiving services and their families.

• - - Provision of stipends for customizable goods and services, and other non-Medicaid
■ billable services.

Many New Hampshire children, youlh. and their families experience difficulties In day-to-day life
due to'serious emotional'disturbances (SED) and face challenges finding the app'ropriate supports
when .supports are needed. Children and youth are often placed out of the home in residential
treatment facilities, psychiatric hospitals, juvenile justice facitilies, or daytirhe; programs. Many of these
placements tal<e the children and youlh out of their local schools and communities.

*  I » •

Despite .the best intentions and -hard work of -families and providers, services are often
fragmented and difficult to navigate. New Hampshire is making great progress iri addressing these
challenges using the New Hampshire Wraparound program called FAST Forward. The FAST Forward
program stands for 'Families end Systems Together and is designed to serve youth with SED and
their families, whose needs arc not met by traditional service streams and programs. This is done by
utilizing a high fidelity Wraparound approach which is a definable, individualized, and strengths-based
planning process that incor^rates a child and family team and results in a unique set of services and
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supports for the child or youth and their family, with the plan closely monitored lo'achieve a positive set
of outcomes.

Qualifying children-and youth are Medicaid eligible, aged Tive (5) through twenty-one (21);
experiencing difficulties In day-to-day life due to a dia'grtosis of SEO, and are at risk of multi-agency
involvement. Through FAST Forward, the.se children, youth, and their families can be served in their
honie cbmmuniti.es. while living in their natural homes and attending their community's school program.
Outcomes of a high fidelity Wraparound program include, but are not limited to; Increased positive
social, academic, and behavioral outcomes and community connectedness for children, yputh, and
families: decreased out of home, school, and community placements (and duration of such); increased
caregiver capacity/decreased caregiver strain; and access .to programs and supports that are uniquely
tailored to each child and family's culture, -strengths, and goals. This is a unique prograpfi in New
Hampshire to service the described population in this rrianner.

The utilization of high fidelity Wraparound with an SEO population has demonstrated a
reduction in the repeat use and duration of stays for children and youth at New Hampshire Hospital.
Additionally, this program embodies the values and principles of a System of Care within the
Department, which is required to be shown under RSA 135:F. System of Care Law.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option'to exiend for up to two (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
senrices. available funding, agreement of "the parties and approval of the Governor and Council. This
amendment requests one (1) year of renewal, leaving one (1) year remaining.

. The Vendor has provided all areas of scope ihVoughbyt the life of the contract. Tfie FAST
Forward Program has successfully expanded -to serve-more children due to the Vendor's-effective
Implementation and management of the programming within the contract. The Vendor has shown a
willingness to be flexible when heeded, but also shown strong procedural -adherence to the
Department's policies and the contractual obligations.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families with children
and youth with SEO may have fewer services.available -to them in their community and statewide to
meet the challenges that mental illness presents them. Many of these same families have.struggled to
nod supports previously, that meets their complex needs and find themselves without supports thai can
effectively meet thprn. If this amendment Is not approved, there may be an increase in out-of-
community and an out-of-state placement for these children and youth, increased involvement with
DCYF, as well as more frequent and longer stays for the.se children and youth at New Hampshire
Hospital.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds; 100% General Funds.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submiUed,-

Katja S. Fox .
Director'

Approved by:
Jeffrey A.'Meyers
Commissioner

Tht D<porttiienl of HtcUh ond WiifliO'i Strviut' Mittion i$ to join nniniuniliet o/id fontHici m
tiroviding oppOfiunitia {or dlixnt to ochievc heoUh ond independence.
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STATE OF NEW HAWPSKIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DrVlSlON FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 fLCASANTSTRerr. CONCORD. NH 0J30I''
<0i-27l-9S44 I-8004S2-JMS CiL 9S44

Fas:60V27M232 TDD Acccu: l-eOO>7JM'64

June6. 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sunijnu ■
and the Honorable Council

State House . r

Concord. New Hampshire 0330.1

■ REQUESTED ACTION . '

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health to
enter Into an agreerueht with NFI .North. Inc. Vendpr #177575-8001. PO Box 417. 40 Park Lahc.
Coritoocook. NH 03229. In an amount not to exceed S194.320. to provide Care Management Entity
services for the FAST Forward program effective July.1. 2017 or upon the date of Governor and
Councirapprova). whichever is later, .through June 30.2019. 3% Federal Funds.'97% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018 and SFV 2019..upon the availability and
comlnued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts wHhin
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years through tho Budget Office If
needed and justified, without approval from Governor and. Executive Council.

05-95-92.9210102QS3.HEALTH, AND SOCIAl, SERVICES. DEPT.OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH. SYSTEM OF CARE '

•  Fiscal

Year.' Class/Account Class Title . Job Number Total Amount

SFY 18 ■ 072-509073 Grants-Federal 92102100 $6,000
SFY 18 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92102053 . $91,160
SFY 19 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services. ■  92102053 $97,160

Total $194,320

EXPLANATION

Funds In this agreement will be used for the.provlsion of Care Management Entity services for
the FAST Forward program, which include, but are not lirnited to: •

.• Provision of Individual-Service Options (ISO) in-home services.

•  Wraparound Coordination. •
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•  • Wraparound Coordinator training and coaching.

•  Wraparound team meeting attendance.

•  Provision of youth peer support.'

•  Oetermlnalion of needed customizable goods and services for the children/youth
receiving services and their families.

•  , Provision of stipends for customizable good.s and services, and other non-'Medicaid
billable services.

Many New Hampshire children, youth, and their families experience difficutiies In day-to-day life
due to serious emotional disturbances and face challenges rmding the right support at (he rigtit time.
The children and youth are often placed out of home in residential treatment facilities, psychiatric
hospitals, juvenile justice facilities, pr daytime programs. Many of these placements'take the children
and youth out of their local schools and communities. Despite the best intentions and hard wo.rk of
families and providers, sewices are often fragrnented and difficuli to navigate. New Hampshire is
making great progress in addressing these challenges using the New Hampshire Wraparound,
program called FAST Forward. The FAST Forward program stands tor 'Families end Systems
Together'.and is designed to serve youth with serious emotional disturbances (SED) arid their families,-

.whose needs are nol fnei'by traditional service streams arid programs, by utilizing a high fidelity
Wraparound approach which is'a definable, individualized, and slrength's-based.planning process .that
incorporates, a child and family team and results in a unique set of services ar>d supports for a child
and family, with the plan,closely monitored to achieve a positive set of outcomes;

.Qualifying children and youth who are Medicaid eligible, aged six (6) through twenly^ne (21).
experience difficulties in day-totday lite due to a diagnosis of SED, and are at .risk of multi-agency
involvement. Through FAST Forward, these children, youth, and their families can be served in their
home communities, while living In their natural homes and attending their commuriity's school program.
Outcomes of a high fidelrty Wraparound program Include, but are not limited to: increased positive-
social, academic, and behavioral outcomes and community connectedness for children, youth, and

. families: decreasisd out of home, school, and community placements (and duration of such); increased '
caregiver capacity/decreased caregiver strain; and access to programs and supports that are uniquely
tailored to each child and family's culture, strengths, and g.oals. This is a-unique program in New
Ham{»hire to service the describ^ population in this manner.

The utilizalion of ■ high'fidelity Wraparound with an SED population has demonstrated a
reduction In the repeat use and duration of slays for children and youth at New Hampshire Hospilal.
Addrtipnally. .this priagram emt)odies ihe values and • principles of a System of Care within the
Department, which.ls required to be shown under RSA 135:F. System of Care Law.

As staled in Exhibit A, not^ihslanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall be provided after June 30. 20l7;''and the Department shall, no! be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these
services has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2016-2019
biennia.-

NFI North. Inc. was selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for
FYoposals was posted on The Department of Health and Human Services' web silo from March 9. 2017
through April 10, 2017. The' Department received two (2) proposals. The proposals were reviewed
and scored by a-team of individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough
discussion of (he strengths and-weaknesses of the proposals, The Score Summary is attached.



His Excellency, Governor ChrUiopher T. Sununu
ami (Ae Honorable Council
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As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhlbll C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to. extend for up to^two (3) additional year(s). conitingent upon satisfactory delivery of
servldes. avaitable funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families with children and
youth with SED may have fewer services avaitable to thern in their community and statewide to.meet
(he challenges that mental illness presents for these children, youth, and their families. There Is likely
(0 be an increase in out-of>community and out-of-state placements for these children and youth, as
wet! as more frequent arvl longer stays for these children and youth at New Hampshire Hospital. ■

Area served: Statewide.

•  Source of Funds: Source of Funds; 3% Federal Funds from (he Substance Abuse and Mental

Health Services Administration, System of Card Grant, and 97% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no lor^ger available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program. .'

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Oiri ctor

,  , ,

Approved by: J(^rey A/ Meyers
Commissioner

Tttf tk'fiorlfntnt 9/HtoliK entf Huncn u c^Aimuniiin and /osiilitt «ppO'luntiwi /»f
eilittAi u oeKUit AfollA end iAdtptAdtntt.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

•  . Surnmary Scoring Sheet ' • . •

Caie Management Entity Services for

FAST Forward •
RFP Nsmo

RFP-2018-OBH^2-CAREM

RFP'Number.

1.

2..

Bidder Ramo

LifeShare Management Group, LLC

NFI Nortt). Inc.

3. V,

T4-.

5.

Pa««/Fali.

. Maximum

Points

Actual-

Points

.  165 91 •

165 ■- 159

165 6

165 .0

165 0 . •

Reviewer Names

1  l-ntkk mhtChild Behavioral Knh

2.

3.

. Tech

Kerrl Mirrprty. Oivi«ton ol Behavil
MeaOi^ogSpectaSsnVj^Tett*
Adele GaQanl. AdministrBlor.
Bureau Child Behavrt Hith. Tech

^ Ertca Ur^garelfi. Director. Bureau of
■ Child Behavioral HBh. Co»t

Ad/ninrstralor.ll. Cost

6.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
OEPAKTMEKTOr (NPORMATlON TECHNOLOGY

27 Kakd Dr., Connml KH Q&301
P«)c 6avn'15t6 TDD Acccn: t«l(V735-»64

www jOx.goy / dcit

DoabGoaM
ComaiUtlow

/uiK 12,2017

Jcffiyy A. Mey^n. Commiuiooer
Departmcfil of He^ ood Humas Servicci
Sue of New Hampihire'
129 Plnu&tScreet

Coocortl, NH 03301

Dear Comreiisiooer Meyen:

T2u9 kxttf represents fomoJ cotjncatibn thai the Department of [nfbrrQitioa Technology (DoIT)
has approved your egeocy'i request to etrto into a contract wHh NFl North. Inc. of Coaioocook, NH as
described below and referenced as DolT No. 2016-069.

NFt North, Inc. will provide Care Maruigtment Entity services for the FAST Forward
Program. The System of Care Orani requires b>OiS to implement the ttecooary
infrestruchire to support a Systero of Care (SOC) for ae^mg youth with complex
behavioral health coocems. such ai a Serious Motional Disturbaoces (SED). Under the -

' gram period DHHS serves as the Care Management Botity (CME) for the FAST Forward
program. A CME modal U'lntendedto coordiaats and streamltno the necessary aervtcea
for families with a child^outb that has an SED.

The emovst of the cbotrect is not to exceed $194,320.00, aod shall become efTcctivo July
1,2017 or upoo the date of Governor and Executive Coxmcil approval, whichever is later,
through June 30.2019. .

.A copy of this lese' should accompany the. Department of Htahh and Human .Services'
.submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

/iki
Denis Goulet

DG/haf

-Dorr 02018-069

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DofT

•/rtftowth* TttfinoloQlts Todayfor N<wHompjhUt'i Tomotrow'


